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STAFF OFFICE DIRECTORS 
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39   Fiscal Report (Mr. Nolan) Information 
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  No reports  
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LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
MEETING SUMMARY 

October 25, 2021 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Speaker Fecteau called the October 25, 2021 meeting of the 130th Legislative Council to order at 
11:05 a.m. in the Legislative Council Chamber. 

 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Senators: President Jackson, Senator Vitelli, Senator Daughtry, Senator 
Timberlake and Senator Pouliot 

 
Representatives: Speaker Fecteau, Representative Dunphy, Representative Talbot Ross, 

Representative Dillingham and Representative Stetkis 
 
Legislative Officers: Darek Grant, Secretary of the Senate 

Robert Hunt, Clerk of the House 
Suzanne Gresser, Executive Director 
Edward Charbonneau, Revisor of Statutes 
Chris Nolan, Director, Office of Fiscal and Program Review 
Nik Rende, Director, Director, Legislative Information Technology 
Jackie Little, Human Resources Director 
 

Speaker Fecteau convened the meeting at 11:05 a.m. with a quorum of members present. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF OCTOBER 7, 2021 MEETING OF LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
 

Motion: That the Meeting Summary for October 7, 2021 be accepted and placed on file. 
Motion by Senator Daughtry. Second by President Jackson. Motion passed 
unanimously (10-0-0-0). 
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REPORTS FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND COUNCIL OFFICES 

Fiscal Report 

Chris Nolan, Director, Office of Fiscal and Program Review, submitted the written report found in 
the agenda packet. 

Studies Report 

Danielle Fox, Director, Office of Policy and Legal Analysis, submitted the written studies report 
found in the agenda packet.   

Speaker Fecteau indicated, without objection, that he would present the Personnel Committee’s report later 
in the meeting. 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

NEW BUSINESS  

Item #1: Proposed Document Service Fee Schedule for 130th Legislature, Second Regular Session 

Ms. Gresser presented the proposed Document Service fee schedule submitted by Clerk of the 
House, Robert Hunt, for the Second Regular Session.  The fees remain the same as the First Regular 
Session. 

Motion: That the Legislative Council approves proposed Document Service Fee Schedule 
for the 130th Legislature Second Regular Session. Motion by Representative Talbot Ross. 
Second by Representative Dillingham. Motion passed unanimously (10-0-0-0). 

Item #2:   Legislative Council meeting schedule for 2022 

Ms. Gresser reviewed the proposed meeting schedule for the Legislative Council for 2022. 

Motion: That the Legislative Council approve the 2022 Legislative Council meeting 
schedule. Motion by Senator Vitelli. Second by Representative Dunphy. Motion passed 
unanimous (10-0-0-0). 
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Item #3: Procedures for Deciding Legislative Bill Requests and Consideration of Bill Requests for the 
Second Regular Session. 

Ms. Gresser reviewed the procedures for the review of Legislative Bill Requests and the proposed 
protocol for deciding those requests.   

Motion: That the Legislative Council approves the proposed protocol for deciding 
Legislative Bill Requests. Motion by Senator Timberlake. Second by Representative 
Talbot Ross. Motion passed unanimously (10-0-0-0). 

The Legislative Council proceeded to consider and vote on three hundred twenty-nine (329) bill 
requests in accordance with the adopted protocol, and using an electronic voting system.  The 
Legislative Council authorized one hundred seven (107) bills for introduction in the Second 
Regular Session, and tabled four (4) bill requests. Three (3) bill requests were withdrawn by the 
sponsors prior to the Legislative Council’s vote.  The Legislative Council’s action on the bill 
requests is attached. 

Speaker Fecteau returned to an agenda item that had been deferred, and presented a report from a Council 
Committee.  

REPORTS FROM COUNCIL COMMITTEES 

Personnel Committee 

Speaker Fecteau reported that the Personnel Committee met earlier today to consider Collective 
Bargaining.  Ms. Gresser briefed the committee about recent collective bargaining negotiations with 
MSEA. This item will be discussed later in today’s meeting. 

The Legislative Council then returned to the other items on the agenda. 

Item #4: Executive Session: Collective Bargaining Matters and Employment Terms and Conditions 
for Certain Legislative Employees 

Motion: That in accordance with 1 MRSA § 405, sub§ 6, the Legislative Council enter 
into an executive session for the purpose of discussing collective bargaining negotiations. 
Motion by Speaker Fecteau. Second by Representative Dunphy. Motion passed 
unanimously (10-0-0-0). 

The Legislative Council entered into an executive session at 12:49 p.m. At the conclusion of its 
executive session, on a motion by Senator Daughtry, seconded by Representative Dillingham, the 
Legislative Council voted unanimously to ends its executive session at 1:03 p.m. and reconvene its 
regular meeting during which the following motion regarding collective bargaining was made. 
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Motion: That pursuant to its authority under 26 MRSA, §979-A, sub-§5, the Legislative 
Council of the 130th Legislature ratify the collective bargaining agreement for the period 
October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2023 that was negotiated and tentatively agreed to by 
the authorized representatives of the Legislative Council and the Maine Service Employees 
Association on October 14, 2021.  Further, that the Legislative Council authorize the 
Executive Director to take all necessary steps to carry out the terms of this Agreement; Further, 
that upon recommendation of the Personnel Committee, the Legislative Council exercise its 
right to adopt the revisions to its personnel policies, pending agreement from the respective 
authorities, to apply personnel policies and benefit provisions that are comparable to those 
contained in the aforementioned ratified collective bargaining agreement; and direct its 
Executive Director to incorporate as appropriate and administer those provisions. Motion by 
Speaker Fecteau. Second by Rep. Dillingham. Motion passed unanimously (10-0-0-0).   

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REMARKS 

Senator Vitelli asked for clarification on the upcoming dates for appeal.  Speaker Fecteau confirmed 
with staff that November 1st is the deadline for bill sponsors to file appeals of bills that were not 
accepted by the Legislative Council at today’s meeting, and the Legislative Council would meet to 
consider appeals on November 18th. 

President Jackson asked staff if they could provide regular updates on sales tax revenue generated by 
sales of adult use marijuana and medical marijuana. 

With no other business to consider or further announcements, the Legislative Council meeting was 
adjourned at 1:11 p.m. 
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Representative Alley of Beals
LR 2270 FAILED

An Act To Help the Lobster Industry Respond to New Federal Rules and 
Regulations

Representative Andrews of Paris
LR 2282 FAILED

An Act To Protect Financial Privacy by Prohibiting the Surveillance of 
Financial Transactions

LR 2283 FAILED
An Act To Stimulate Economic Recovery for Hourly Workers Paid Overtime 
at Time and a Half for Tax Year 2022

LR 2371 FAILED
An Act To Improve Pathways to Certain Professional Licenses By Removing 
the Good Moral Character Requirement

Representative Arford of Brunswick
LR 2348 FAILED

An Act To Address the Urgent Need for Primary Care Providers in Maine By 
Licensing Medical School Graduates as Assistant Physicians

Representative Babbidge of Kennebunk
LR 2417 FAILED

An Act To Establish the Commission on the Future of Maine's Intertidal 
Lands

Senator Bailey of York
LR 2367 FAILED

An Act To Promote Affordable Housing by Allowing the Adoption of 
Subdivision Standards Established by the Maine State Housing Authority

LR 2396 PASSED
An Act To Provide Insurance Coverage for a Beneficiary on a Transfer on 
Death Deed

Senator Baldacci of Penobscot
LR 2224 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Crime of Endangering the Welfare of a Child

Page 1 of 34 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PMOffice of the Executive Director

130th Legislature - Second Regular Session 
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests 

October 25, 2021

Action
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Senator Baldacci of Penobscot
LR 2280 FAILED

An Act To Establish the Office of the Inspector General of Maine Child 
Protection

LR 2281 FAILED
Resolve, To Direct the University of Maine System To Study the Feasibility of 
Establishing a Public Allopathic Medical School in Penobscot County

LR 2285 PASSED
An Act To Improve the Child and Family Court Process

LR 2286 FAILED
An Act To Ensure All Maine Children Have a Healthy Start by Providing 
Health Care Coverage

LR 2291 FAILED
An Act To Strengthen Maine's Child Protection Laws

LR 2430 FAILED
An Act To Reduce the Sales Tax on Automobiles

LR 2431 PASSED
An Act To Address Staffing Shortages in Critical Public Safety Jobs through 
Economic Incentives

LR 2432 FAILED
An Act To Combat Unwanted Telephone Solicitations

LR 2433 FAILED
An Act To Expand the Scope of the Retired County and Municipal Law 
Enforcement Officers and Municipal Firefighters Health Insurance Program

LR 2459 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Minimum Wage for All Health Care Workers Including 
All Support Staff

LR 2469 FAILED
An Act Regarding Syringe Exchange Programs

LR 2470 FAILED
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Senator Baldacci of Penobscot
Resolve, Directing the Commissioner of Health and Human Services and the 
Commissioner of Corrections To Develop Alternative Responses to Mental 
Health and Substance Use Disorder Emergency Calls

LR 2471 FAILED
An Act To Assist Communities in Dealing with Homelessness by Providing 
State Funding

Senator Bennett of Oxford
LR 2173 FAILED

An Act Regarding the Application of Antimicrobial Agents by School Facilities 
Staff

LR 2215 FAILED
An Act To Provide for a Religious Exemption from All Vaccine Mandates

Representative Berry of Bowdoinham
LR 2122 FAILED

An Act To Prohibit a Regulated Utility from Disconnecting Service to a 
Designated Public Safety Facility without 60 Days' Advance Notice

LR 2124 FAILED
An Act To Require the Public Utilities Commission To Specify the Percentage 
Increase or Decrease in the Delivery Portion of an Electricity Customer's Bill 
in All Communications Relating to Delivery Rate Adjustments

LR 2492 PASSED
An Act To Support Employees of the Riverview Psychiatric Center and 
Riverview Psychiatric Center Outpatient Services

LR 2493 FAILED
An Act To Improve Intensive Behavioral Health and Public Safety Case 
Management Services by Providing a Pay Increase to Intensive Case 
Managers

Representative Bickford of Auburn
LR 2378 PASSED

An Act To Create Affordable Agricultural Homesteads

Senator Black of Franklin
LR 2220 FAILED
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Senator Black of Franklin
An Act To Allow Plantations To Vote on Adult Use Marijuana Facilities and 
Stores and Medical Marijuana Facilities and Stores

LR 2400 FAILED
An Act To Create the Logging Contractor Relations Program

LR 2480 FAILED
Resolve, Directing the Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife and the 
Department of Environmental Protection To Assess the Ecological Effects of 
Glyphosate-containing Herbicide Formulations and Other Herbicide 
Formulations Sprayed for Forest Management

Representative Blume of York
LR 2327 FAILED

An Act To Encourage Climate Change Education in Maine Public Schools

Senator Breen of Cumberland
LR 2144 PASSED

An Act To Require Screening for Cytomegalovirus in Certain Newborn 
Infants 

LR 2146 FAILED
An Act To Exempt Specialty License Plates Already in the Process of Being 
Created from the Moratorium on the Approval of Any New Motor Vehicle 
Registration Plates

LR 2163 WITHDRAWN
An Act To Promote Workforce Development in Maine

LR 2247 FAILED
An Act To Improve the Department of Agriculture, Conservation and 
Forestry's Low-cost Spaying and Neutering Program

LR 2510 PASSED
An Act To Protect School Officials from Harassment and Abuse

Representative Brennan of Portland
LR 2120 FAILED

An Act Regarding Compensation for College Athletes in the University of 
Maine System
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Representative Brennan of Portland
LR 2130 FAILED

Resolve, Directing the Department of Education To Develop Protocols and 
Plans for Ensuring That All Relevant Services Are Included in an 
Individualized Education Program 

LR 2131 PASSED
Resolve, Regarding MaineCare Funding for Maine Schools

LR 2152 FAILED
An Act Regarding College Tuition Waivers for Disadvantaged Students

Senator Brenner of Cumberland
LR 2187 FAILED

Resolve, To Require the Public Utilities Commission To Conduct a Study of 
Rate Design for Customers Whose Administrative Customer Charges Exceed 
Their Overall Utility Bill

LR 2252 PASSED
An Act To Allow Exceptions to the Height Limitations under the Shoreland 
Zoning Laws

LR 2268 FAILED
An Act To Provide Tax Benefits to Persons Constructing Accessory Dwelling 
Units on Residential-zoned Property

LR 2329 PASSED
An Act To Address Burnout among Nurses and improve Patient Care

LR 2330 FAILED
An Act To Adjust the Personal Property Tax Exemption for Farm Machinery

LR 2331 FAILED
An Act To Enable Participation in the Physical Therapy Compact

LR 2412 WITHDRAWN
An Act To Establish the Position of Deputy Secretary of State for Diversity, 
Equity and Inclusion in the Department of the Secretary of State

Representative Bryant of Windham
LR 2177 FAILED

An Act Regarding Abandoned Motor Vehicle Fines and Disposal
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Representative Bryant of Windham

LR 2304 FAILED
An Act To Increase the Limit for Storage Fees for Abandoned Vehicles

Representative Caiazzo of Scarborough
LR 2360 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Testing Requirements for Adult Use Marijuana

Representative Cardone of Bangor
LR 2248 FAILED

An Act To Limit Parking Reserved for Persons with Disabilities to Vehicles 
Transporting Persons with Disabilities

Senator Carney of Cumberland
LR 2402 PASSED

An Act To Maintain Consistency among Maine's Nondiscrimination Statutes

Senator Chipman of Cumberland
LR 2263 FAILED

An Act To Improve the Property Tax System

Senator Claxton of Androscoggin
LR 2277 FAILED

An Act To Enhance Access to, Education Regarding and Patient and 
Community Safety in Maine's Medical Use of Marijuana Program

LR 2278 PASSED
An Act To Support Improvements in Child Protective Services

LR 2279 PASSED
An Act Regarding the So-called Leveraging Investments so Families Can 
Thrive Report Produced by the Department of Health and Human Services

LR 2284 FAILED
An Act To Promote Nonprofit Organizations That Support the Training and 
Safety of Service and Working Dogs through a Sales Tax Exemption

LR 2335 PASSED
An Act To Establish the 340B Drug Pricing Nondiscrimination Act
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Senator Claxton of Androscoggin

LR 2355 PASSED
An Act To Improve the Quality and Affordability of Primary Health Care

Representative Cloutier of Lewiston
LR 2261 FAILED

An Act To Restore Funding to the State's Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Program

Representative Collings of Portland
LR 2434 FAILED

An Act To Protect Communities from Water Extraction That Is Detrimental to 
Aquifers

LR 2457 PASSED
An Act To Review State Lands or Waterways That Have Sacred, Traditional 
or Other Significance to the Wabanaki Tribes

LR 2458 FAILED
An Act To Add a Tribal Member to the Baxter State Park Authority

LR 2483 FAILED
An Act To Increase the Tax on Mining Operations to 10 Percent

LR 2500 FAILED
An Act To Place a 3 Percent Income Tax Surcharge on Incomes over 
$1,000,000

LR 2509 FAILED
An Act Regarding Tribal Gaming

LR 2516 FAILED
Resolve, To Study Discrimination in Section 8 Rental Housing

Representative Copeland of Saco
LR 2464 FAILED

Resolve, To Create a Task Force To Study the Water Quality of Saco Bay 
and To Determine Pollution Sources

LR 2465 FAILED
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Representative Copeland of Saco
An Act To Protect Access to Workers' Compensation Benefits

Representative Corey of Windham
LR 2388 FAILED

An Act To Ensure the Integrity of County and Regional Dispatchers through 
the Use of Polygraph Examinations

Representative Costain of Plymouth
LR 2324 FAILED

An Act To Require the Immediate Transfer of Individuals in County Jails to 
State Mental Health Facilities upon Completion of Judicial Review of 
Involuntary Hospitalization Proceedings

Representative Crafts of Newcastle
LR 2467 FAILED

An Act Regarding the Regulation of Electrical Work and Equipment on Boats

Representative Craven of Lewiston
LR 2141 FAILED

An Act To Safeguard the Privacy of Individuals Applying for Guardianship in 
Probate Court

LR 2142 PASSED
An Act To Provide Funding for Guardians Ad Litem

LR 2249 FAILED
An Act To Provide Personal Mailboxes to All Tenants of Multiple-dwelling 
Houses 

LR 2429 PASSED
An Act To Make MaineCare Rules Pertaining to Global Home and 
Community-based Services Waiver Programs and Person-centered Planning 
and Settings Major Substantive Rules

Representative Crockett of Portland
LR 2265 FAILED

An Act To Allow Wine Retailers with 2 or More Licensed Facilities To Freely 
Transfer Wine between Approved Facilities
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Representative Cuddy of Winterport
LR 2473 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Maine Citizens Benefit from Renewable Energy Generation 
Projects by Establishing Job Quality and Hiring Standards

Senator Curry of Waldo
LR 2119 PASSED

An Act To Enhance the Child Welfare Ombudsman Program

LR 2143 PASSED
An Act To Clarify and Update the Maine Seed Capital Tax Credit Program

LR 2441 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Boundary between Waldo County and Knox County in 
Penobscot Bay

LR 2456 PASSED
An Act To Build More Sustainable Rural Ambulance Services

Senator Cyrway of Kennebec
LR 2184 FAILED

An Act Regarding Funding for Educational Programs for Drug Treatment 
Facilities

Senator Daughtry of Cumberland
LR 2258 FAILED

An Act To Allow Customers To Opt Out of Paper Delivery Tickets

LR 2262 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Laws Governing Storm Water Management for 
Mountain Bike Trails

LR 2297 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Drinking Water Quality Council in the State

LR 2347 PASSED
An Act To Establish the Maine Spaceport Corporation

LR 2375 PASSED
An Act To Expand Nursing Education Programs
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Senator Daughtry of Cumberland
LR 2454 FAILED

An Act To Allow the Use of Speed Traps with Cameras To Promote Public 
Safety

Senator Davis, Sr. of Piscataquis
LR 2164 PASSED

An Act Regarding the Retirement of Law Enforcement Officers under the 
Participating Local District Retirement Program

LR 2169 FAILED
An Act Regarding Illegal School Entry

LR 2175 FAILED
An Act To Amend the Statewide Fire Code

LR 2176 FAILED
An Act To Prevent the Theft of Catalytic Converters

LR 2231 PASSED
Resolve, To Name Bridges in the Town of Milo for Veterans Who Died during 
the Vietnam War

Senator Deschambault of York
LR 2303 FAILED

An Act To Prohibit Invasion of Privacy on Property by Surveillance Cameras

LR 2361 FAILED
An Act To Establish the Safe Homes Program

Senator Diamond of Cumberland
LR 2133 PASSED

An Act To Strengthen the Office of the Child Welfare Services Ombudsman 
by Providing for Increased Staffing

LR 2134 PASSED
An Act To Prioritize the Prosecution of Child Murder Cases

LR 2228 FAILED
An Act To Prohibit the Use of License Plate Coverings That Obstruct a Clear 
View of the Plate
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Senator Diamond of Cumberland

LR 2232 PASSED
An Act To Establish Ongoing Monitoring of Maine's Child Protective Services

LR 2288 PASSED
An Act To Address Employee Retention at the Maine State Police Crime 
Laboratory and the Computer Crimes Unit in the Department of Public 
Safety

Senator Dill of Penobscot
LR 2159 FAILED

An Act To Provide Funding for the Purchase of Maine Public Employees 
Retirement System Service Credit at a Subsidized Cost by Certain Persons 
Who Served in the Armed Forces of the United States

LR 2179 FAILED
An Act To Allow Deferment of a Moose Permit When More than One Is 
Granted to the Same Household

LR 2180 PASSED
An Act To Expand the Acreage Available for Agricultural Use by the 
Department of Corrections

LR 2181 FAILED
An Act To Allow the Department of Corrections To Dig a Well in the Bud 
Leavitt Wildlife Management Area

LR 2182 FAILED
An Act To Restrict the Sale of Used Catalytic Converters

LR 2253 FAILED
An Act To Allow for Expungement of Certain Criminal Records and To 
Expunge Criminal and Civil Records Related to Marijuana Activities Legalized 
by the Voters of Maine

LR 2260 PASSED
An Act To Change the Requirements for the Sales of Used Catalytic 
Converters

LR 2474 FAILED
An Act Providing for Nondiscrimination in Access to Anatomical Donation 
and Organ Transplantation
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Representative Dillingham of Oxford
LR 2301 PASSED

An Act To Authorize Certain Off-premises Sales of Adult Use Marijuana

LR 2438 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Laws Related to the Use of Medical Marijuana and 
Workers' Compensation

LR 2439 PASSED
An Act To Direct the Department of Health and Human Services To Clarify 
and Amend the Rules Related to Micropigmentation Practitioners

Representative Dodge of Belfast
LR 2395 FAILED

Resolve, To Protect Funding for the State Employee Health Care Program

Representative Dunphy of Old Town
LR 2332 PASSED

An Act To Allow Unorganized Territory School Staff To Receive Annualized 
Pay

Representative Evangelos of Friendship
LR 2254 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Composition and Powers of the Deadly Force Review 
Panel

LR 2255 FAILED
An Act To Repeal the Law Regarding the County Jail Reimbursement Fee

Representative Evans of Dover-Foxcroft
LR 2271 PASSED

An Act To Encourage Job Growth in the Forestry Sector through Tax 
Incentives

LR 2451 PASSED
An Act To Improve Health Care Affordability and Increase Options for 
Comprehensive Coverage for Individuals and Small Businesses in Maine

Senator Farrin of Somerset
LR 2127 FAILED
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Senator Farrin of Somerset
An Act Regarding the Authorization of Services Performed by Emergency 
Medical Services Personnel

LR 2149 FAILED
An Act To Prevent State Government from Influencing Health Care Decisions

Representative Faulkingham of Winter Harbor
LR 2422 FAILED

An Act To Retain and Expand Job Opportunities in the Health Care Industry

LR 2463 FAILED
An Act To Create a Legal Defense Fund for the Maine Lobster Industry

Representative Fay of Raymond
LR 2210 PASSED

An Act To Continue Supporting Safe Drinking Water for Maine Families

LR 2453 PASSED
An Act To Increase Maine's Veterinary Workforce and Keep Maine Farms 
Healthy through a Scholarship Program

Speaker Fecteau of Biddeford
LR 2299 PASSED

An Act To Implement the Recommendations of the Commission To Increase 
Housing Opportunities in Maine by Studying Zoning and Land Use 
Restrictions

LR 2356 PASSED
An Act To Promote Labor Education

LR 2468 TABLED
An Act To Require Cultural Competency Training in State-licensed Assisted 
Living Facilities, Nursing Homes, Rehabilitation Facilities and Independent 
Living Facilities

Representative Geiger of Rockland
LR 2340 FAILED

An Act To Make State Education Subsidies More Equitable

LR 2354 FAILED
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Representative Geiger of Rockland
An Act To Create a Livable Wage across Maine

LR 2410 FAILED
An Act To Transition to Publicly Funded Early Childhood Education

LR 2411 FAILED
An Act To Address Overdue Maintenance at Owls Head State Park

Representative Gere of Kennebunkport
LR 2390 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Maine Jobs, Trade and Democracy Act

LR 2481 FAILED
An Act To Improve the Educational Climate and Safety in Maine Schools by 
Reducing Bias and Harassment

Representative Gramlich of Old Orchard Beach
LR 2504 FAILED

An Act To Protect the Public from Exposure to Toxic Perfluoroalkyl and 
Polyfluoroalkyl Substances from Fish Consumption

LR 2505 PASSED
An Act To Strengthen Child Sexual Abuse Laws and the Sex Offender 
Registry Protocol

LR 2506 FAILED
An Act To Implement Best Practices Regarding Children's Behavioral and 
Mental Health Care

LR 2507 FAILED
An Act To Ensure Low-income Families and Children with Special Needs Can 
Access Aftercare School Programs

Representative Greenwood of Wales
LR 2488 FAILED

An Act To Protect Maine Citizens from Discrimination by Including 
Vaccination Status as a Protected Class

LR 2495 FAILED
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Representative Greenwood of Wales
An Act To Protect Maine Families by Removing Department of Health and 
Human Services Administrative Appeal Hearings from Department Oversight

LR 2499 FAILED
An Act To Restore Religious and Philosophical Exemptions from Vaccination 
Requirements

LR 2515 FAILED
An Act To Protect Students in Maine Public Schools from Mandatory Masking

Representative Grohoski of Ellsworth
LR 2377 FAILED

An Act To Improve Safety for Personnel Providing Public Services along 
Roads

LR 2391 PASSED
An Act To Define "Discrete Electric Generating Facility"

LR 2489 FAILED
An Act To Strengthen Maine's Clean Energy Economy through the Use of 
Community Choice Aggregation Entities

Senator Guerin of Penobscot
LR 2162 FAILED

An Act To Allow Health Care Workers To Direct Their Own Health Care 
Choices

Representative Harnett of Gardiner
LR 2256 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Constitutionally Adequate Contact with Counsel

LR 2382 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Remote Meeting Law in Maine's Freedom of Access 
Act

LR 2414 PASSED
An Act Clarifying the Right to Legal Representation for Individuals Subject to 
Guardianship
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Representative Hasenfus of Readfield
LR 2466 FAILED

Resolve, Directing the Interagency Task Force on Invasive Aquatic Plants 
and Nuisance Species To Recommend Ways To Reduce the Threat of 
Further Infestations

Representative Hepler of Woolwich
LR 2316 PASSED

An Act To Provide Funding to Municipalities Severely Infested with Browntail 
Moths

Senator Hickman of Kennebec
LR 2121 PASSED

Resolve, Authorizing the Maine National Guard To Sell Certain Property in 
Hallowell 

LR 2123 PASSED
An Act To Expand the 1998 Special Retirement Plan To Include Employees 
Who Work for the Office of Chief Medical Examiner

LR 2339 PASSED
An Act To Help Alleviate Maine's Housing Shortage through Changes to 
Zoning Laws

LR 2440 PASSED
An Act To Strengthen the Maine Civil Rights Act

LR 2511 PASSED
An Act To Restructure the Administration of the Bureau of Alcoholic 
Beverages and Lottery Operations

Representative Hutchins of Penobscot
LR 2337 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Free Expression on Campuses of the University of Maine 
System by Promoting Campus Clubs

LR 2338 FAILED
An Act To Ensure the Participation of Parents and Taxpayers at Local School 
Board Meetings

LR 2342 FAILED
An Act To Protect Voter Integrity and Voter Authority over Absentee Ballots
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Representative Hutchins of Penobscot

LR 2343 FAILED
An Act To Ensure Protection of the Ocean Bottom within Maine's 3-mile 
Boundary

Representative Hymanson of York
LR 2171 FAILED

An Act To Establish a Commission To Study the Health Effects of 5G Cellular 
Towers

LR 2172 FAILED
An Act To Allow Certain Nonresidents Access to Department of Health and 
Human Services Waiting Lists for Services

LR 2482 FAILED
Resolve, To Ensure the Continuation of Services to Maine Children and 
Families through the Alternative Response Program

President Jackson of Aroostook
LR 2160 PASSED

An Act To Establish a Disaster Relief Fund for Potato Farmers Adversely 
Affected by Drought Conditions

LR 2161 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Charter of the St. Francis Water District

LR 2167 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Role of the Legislature in Sustaining Good-paying Jobs 
in the Forest Products Industry and To Promote Healthy Rivers

LR 2275 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Caribou Utilities District Charter To Include Broadband 
Services

LR 2287 FAILED
An Act To Fix Split Retirement Benefits for Certain State Employees

LR 2289 FAILED
An Act To Create the Office of Federal Liaison for Maine's Heritage Lobster 
Industry

LR 2290 PASSED
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President Jackson of Aroostook
An Act To Address Inequality in Retirement for Department of Corrections 
Supervisors

LR 2298 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Access to Prescription Contraceptives

LR 2326 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Laws Related to Online Raffle Tickets To Reflect the 
True Intent of Those Laws

LR 2359 PASSED
An Act To Expand Access to Justice in Rural Maine through Legal Education

LR 2398 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Equitable Geographic Access to Long-term Care Services 
in the Department of Health and Human Services

LR 2416 PASSED
An Act To Support Health Care Workers by Providing Hazard 
Reimbursements and Hazard Pay

LR 2425 PASSED
Resolve, To Assist Long-term Care Facilities

Senator Keim of Oxford
LR 2147 FAILED

An Act To Protect Autonomy in Medical Care

Representative Kryzak of Acton
LR 2436 FAILED

An Act To Amend the State's Tax Laws

Representative Landry of Farmington
LR 2225 FAILED

An Act To Promote the Accessibility and Transparency of Maine's School 
Boards

Senator Lawrence of York
LR 2305 PASSED
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Senator Lawrence of York
An Act To Repeal and Replace the Charter of the Ogunquit Sewer District

LR 2427 FAILED
An Act To Update Maine's Felony Drug Possession Law

Representative Libby of Auburn
LR 2419 FAILED

An Act Regarding Guaranteed Educational Access Resources for Students

LR 2428 FAILED
An Act To Clarify Medical Exemption Allowances under State Law

LR 2449 FAILED
An Act To Ensure Services for Seniors during a State of Emergency by 
Waiving the Certificate of Need Requirement for Nursing and Long-term 
Care Facilities

Representative Lookner of Portland
LR 2251 FAILED

An Act To Prevent the Use of Prone Restraints on Youths Held in 
Department of Corrections Facilities

LR 2475 FAILED
An Act To Prohibit the Use of Choke Holds and Prone Restraints by Public 
Employees

Senator Luchini of Hancock
LR 2132 PASSED

An Act To Make Permanent the Changes to the Liquor Laws Made by Public 
Law 2021, Chapters 3 and 91

LR 2165 FAILED
An Act Regarding the Payment of College Athletes

LR 2226 PASSED
An Act To Create a Framework for Maine's Spirits Contract

LR 2307 PASSED
Resolve, Directing the Department of Health and Human Services To 
Provide Notice of Nursing Home Closures
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Senator Luchini of Hancock

LR 2373 PASSED
An Act Regarding Contributing to Candidates and Political Action 
Committees

LR 2484 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Exemption from Income Tax and Pass-through Entity 
Withholding Tax Liability for Certain Out-of-state Suppliers of Spirits 
Purchased by the Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations

Representative Madigan of Waterville
LR 2317 PASSED

An Act Regarding Access to Telehealth Behavioral Health Services during 
Public Health Emergencies

LR 2318 FAILED
An Act To Establish Limits on the Number of Hours Worked By and 
Workloads of Child Protective Services Workers

LR 2319 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Board To Oversee County Officials

LR 2320 FAILED
An Act To Exempt Sanitizing Products from Sales Tax and Other State Fees

LR 2383 FAILED
An Act To Protect MaineCare Recipients from Prior Authorization and Step 
Therapy for Medications Addressing Serious Mental Illness

LR 2490 FAILED
An Act To Protect Children in Shared Custody

LR 2491 FAILED
An Act To Improve Services for Persons Who Are Experiencing 
Homelessness

Representative Martin of Eagle Lake
LR 2385 PASSED

An Act To Amend the Laws Regarding Education Service Centers

LR 2418 PASSED
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Representative Martin of Eagle Lake
An Act To Provide Clarity and Assistance to Rural Maine Providers in the 
Implementation of the Medicaid Home and Community-based Services 
Waiver Rule

LR 2497 FAILED
An Act Regarding Green Crab Fishing

Representative Mason of Lisbon
LR 2276 PASSED

An Act To Require Law Enforcement Agencies To Retain Serial Numbers of 
Stolen Firearms

Representative Mathieson of Kittery
LR 2156 FAILED

An Act Regarding Special Education Funding for So-called Minimum Receiver 
Districts

Representative Matlack of St. George
LR 2501 FAILED

An Act To Provide Municipal Shellfish Conservation Programs Greater 
Flexibility in Protecting Restricted Shellfish Growing Areas

Senator Maxmin of Lincoln
LR 2357 PASSED

An Act To Improve the Calculation of Payments from Schools That Send 
Tuition Students to Career and Technical Education Programs

LR 2460 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Legislative Review of Rules for Maine's Medical Use of 
Marijuana Act

LR 2476 PASSED
An Act To Strengthen Maine's Good Samaritan Laws

Representative McCrea of Fort Fairfield
LR 2230 TABLED

An Act To Clarify the Retroactive Granting of Sick Leave Days to Public 
School Employees Affected by COVID-19

LR 2435 FAILED
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Representative McCrea of Fort Fairfield
An Act To Provide Quality Child Care in Northern Maine

Representative McCreight of Harpswell
LR 2233 PASSED

An Act To Have Maine Join the Interstate Counseling Compact To Address 
Inequities in Access to Clinical Counseling Services and Increase Maine's 
Provider Workforce

LR 2386 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Safe Entry and Access for People Seeking Health Care

Representative McDonald of Stonington
LR 2158 PASSED

An Act To Extend the Legal Hours for Harvesting Lobster in the Month of 
September

LR 2334 FAILED
An Act To Investigate Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances 
Discharge into Maine's Waterways

LR 2384 FAILED
An Act To Promote Community Health and Safety by Supporting Overdose 
Prevention Services

Representative Meyer of Eliot
LR 2341 FAILED

An Act To Develop Maine's Workforce and Improve Economic Security for 
Maine's Families

Representative Millett of Cape Elizabeth
LR 2145 PASSED

An Act To Strengthen the Governance of the Maine Community College 
System and University of Maine System

LR 2155 FAILED
Resolve, To Direct the Department of Health and Human Services and the 
Department of Labor To Analyze the Prevalence of Maine Citizens Suffering 
from Long-term Symptoms Related to Acute COVID-19 Infection

LR 2245 FAILED
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Representative Millett of Cape Elizabeth
An Act To Establish Green Building Standards for Maine

LR 2323 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Health Insurance Coverage for Certain Adults with 
Disabilities

LR 2403 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Enforcement Provisions of the Law Governing Earned 
Paid Leave

Senator Miramant of Knox
LR 2188 FAILED

An Act To Enact the Maine Workplace Transparency Act To Regulate 
Employment Arbitration Agreements

LR 2219 FAILED
An Act To Amend the Traffic Safety Laws To Prevent Risky Pedestrian Road 
Activity

Senator Moore of Washington
LR 2217 FAILED

An Act To Establish Statewide Residency Restrictions for Sex Offenders

LR 2512 FAILED
An Act To Address Maine's Suicide and Opioid Crises through the 
Construction of Affordable Recovery Facilities in Underserved Areas of the 
State

Representative Morales of South Portland
LR 2314 FAILED

An Act To Reduce Homelessness by Improving the General Assistance 
Program for Recipients and Landlords

LR 2333 FAILED
An Act To Improve Access to Behavioral Health Services by Limiting Cost 
Sharing by Insurers

Representative Moriarty of Cumberland
LR 2189 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Laws Governing the Criminal Use of Laser Pointers
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Representative Moriarty of Cumberland
LR 2368 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Credit for Educational Opportunity

Representative Morris of Turner
LR 2325 FAILED

An Act To Regulate Litigation Financing

LR 2415 FAILED
An Act To Promote Diversity in Financial Product Offerings by Changing the 
Minimum Nonforfeiture Amount for Deferred Annuities to 0.15%

LR 2472 FAILED
An Act Regarding Free Access to Accident Reports

Representative O'Connell of Brewer
LR 2136 FAILED

Resolve, To Require the Maine Board of Pharmacy To Review Work 
Practices and Treatment of Pharmacists

Representative O'Neil of Saco
LR 2446 FAILED

An Act To Provide Textbook Cost Assistance for High School Students 
Enrolled in Early College Courses

LR 2477 FAILED
An Act To Protect the Privacy of Maine Residents

LR 2478 FAILED
An Act To Create a Task Force To Study and Catalog the Use of Artificial 
Intelligence in State Government

LR 2487 FAILED
An Act Regarding Board of Environmental Protection Review of Projects of 
Statewide Significance

Representative Perkins of Oakland
LR 2374 FAILED

An Act To Establish Certain Exemptions to Required Immunizations
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Representative Perry of Calais
LR 2358 WITHDRAWN

An Act To Define "Substance-exposed Infant"

Representative Perry of Bangor
LR 2135 FAILED

An Act To Require That Information Regarding the Distance between the 
Pupils of a Patient's Eyes Be Included Free of Charge on All Eye 
Prescriptions

LR 2392 FAILED
An Act To Allow for a Standard Deviation in Potency for the Manufacturing 
of Adult Use Edible Marijuana Products

LR 2393 FAILED
An Act To Modernize Maine's Rental Vehicle Industry and Equalize the Tax 
Rate Imposed on Rental Vehicles

LR 2479 FAILED
An Act To Modernize Maine's Adult Use Marijuana Laws

Representative Pierce of Falmouth
LR 2259 FAILED

An Act To Prevent COVID-19 Transmission in Maine Schools

LR 2401 PASSED
An Act To Protect Election Integrity by Regulating Possession of Ballots and 
Voting Machines and Devices

Representative Pluecker of Warren
LR 2221 FAILED

Resolve, To Protect Maine's Egg Producers

LR 2227 PASSED
Resolve, To Prohibit the Contamination of Clean Soils with So-called Forever 
Chemicals

LR 2370 FAILED
An Act To Standardize Department of Corrections Reporting to the 
Legislature
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Representative Pluecker of Warren
LR 2376 FAILED

Resolve, To Study Driver's License Suspensions

Representative Poirier of Skowhegan
LR 2404 FAILED

An Act To Expand Working Hours for Minors

Senator Pouliot of Kennebec
LR 2137 FAILED

An Act To Allow Bars with an Occupancy of 30 or Fewer Persons To Have 
Only One Bathroom

LR 2138 FAILED
An Act To Allow Organizations Other Than Schools To Have Yellow Buses 
with Red Flashing Lights and Stop Signs

LR 2139 FAILED
An Act To Allow a Person To Appeal a Suspension of Driving Privileges That 
Is Based on a Doctor's Report to the Bureau of Motor Vehicles

LR 2150 FAILED
An Act To Prohibit Mandatory Vaccinations

LR 2154 FAILED
An Act Regarding the Expansion of the 1998 Special Retirement Plan to 
Civilian Employees of the Department of Public Safety Crime Laboratory and 
Computer Crimes Unit

LR 2214 FAILED
An Act Regarding the Novel Engineering Journeyman Training Program

LR 2229 FAILED
Resolve, To Address Maine's Direct Access Worker Shortage

Senator Rafferty of York
LR 2309 FAILED

An Act To Increase Student Learning Potential through the Use of High-
impact Tutoring

LR 2336 FAILED
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Senator Rafferty of York
An Act To Protect Consumers' Privacy by Giving Them Greater Control of 
Their Data

LR 2426 FAILED
An Act To Establish the State of Maine Infrastructure Bank

Representative Rielly of Westbrook
LR 2234 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Authorizing Statutes of the Maine Commission for 
Community Service To Incorporate the Maine Climate Corps and Address 
Climate Challenges

LR 2235 FAILED
An Act To Require Emergency Contact and Crisis Hotline Numbers To Be 
Included on Student Identification Cards

Representative Roberts of South Berwick
LR 2420 FAILED

An Act To Increase Access to Driver's Licenses for Adults

LR 2423 FAILED
An Act To Increase Access to Driver Education

LR 2448 FAILED
Resolve, Directing the Department of Professional and Financial Regulation 
To Conduct a Sunrise Review of General Contractors

LR 2455 PASSED
An Act To Provide Consistency in the Laws Regarding Domestic Partnership

Representative Roeder of Bangor
LR 2272 FAILED

An Act To Remove Discriminatory Restrictions Regarding Real Property

LR 2273 PASSED
An Act To Allow Pharmacists To Dispense an Emergency Supply of Chronic 
Maintenance Drugs

Representative Rudnicki of Fairfield
LR 2486 FAILED

Page 27 of 34 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PMOffice of the Executive Director

130th Legislature - Second Regular Session 
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests 

October 25, 2021

Action

P 31



Representative Rudnicki of Fairfield
An Act To Ensure In-state Tuition for Postsecondary Students Who Are 
Maine Residents for the Purpose of Voting

Representative Sachs of Freeport
LR 2185 FAILED

An Act To Require the Use of Mufflers on Airboats

Representative Salisbury of Westbrook
LR 2485 FAILED

An Act Concerning School Security Alarms

Representative Sampson of Alfred
LR 2407 FAILED

An Act To Promote Government Accountability for Maine's COVID-19 
Recovery

LR 2409 FAILED
Resolve, To Establish the Task Force To Study Methods To Mitigate the 
Impacts of the Opioid Epidemic on Rural Communities

LR 2413 FAILED
An Act To End the Public Health Emergency

Senator Sanborn of Cumberland
LR 2170 PASSED

An Act Regarding Point-of-dispensing Sites for Immunizations against 
COVID-19

LR 2363 PASSED
An Act To Require Health Insurance Carriers and Pharmacy Benefits 
Managers To Appropriately Account for Cost-sharing Amounts Paid on 
Behalf of Insureds

LR 2364 FAILED
Resolve, To Identify and Report Prescription Drugs with Unsupported Price 
Increases

Representative Sheehan of Biddeford
LR 2461 FAILED
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Representative Sheehan of Biddeford
An Act To Support Restaurants in the State through Service Charge 
Revenues

LR 2462 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Laws Governing Name Changes

Representative Stetkis of Canaan
LR 2442 FAILED

An Act To Establish Education Curriculum Transparency

Senator Stewart of Aroostook
LR 2125 FAILED

An Act To Exempt Certain Motor Vehicle Dealers from Display Area Size 
Requirements

LR 2129 FAILED
An Act Regarding Persons Whose Parental Rights Have Been Terminated

LR 2269 FAILED
An Act To Guarantee Grandparents the Right to Visitation with Their 
Grandchildren

Representative Stover of Boothbay
LR 2292 FAILED

An Act To Clarify the Application of the Maine Human Rights Act to Persons 
Actively Using Illegal Drugs in Recovery Residences or Sober Living Facilities

LR 2294 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Charter of the Boothbay Harbor Sewer District To Set 
the Terms of Its Trustees at 3 Years

LR 2313 PASSED
An Act To Address the Economic Impact of Federal Closures on Maine's 
Lobster Industry

LR 2399 PASSED
An Act To Improve the Maine Child Welfare Services Ombudsman Program 
by Providing Additional Resources
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Representative Supica of Bangor
LR 2447 FAILED

An Act To Remove a Significant Administrative Burden from Maine Marijuana 
Businesses That Use the State's Marijuana Tracking System

Representative Sylvester of Portland
LR 2372 FAILED

An Act To Establish a Worker and Employer Bill of Rights

LR 2421 FAILED
An Act To Support Law Enforcement Officers, Corrections Officers, E-9-1-1 
Dispatchers, Firefighters and Emergency Medical Services Persons 
Diagnosed with Post-traumatic Stress Disorder

LR 2445 FAILED
An Act To Strengthen Water Districts and Keep Maine's Water Clean

LR 2452 FAILED
Resolve, To Study the Legislature as a Workforce and Suggest 
Improvements To Ensure a Citizens' Legislature

Representative Talbot Ross of Portland
LR 2140 PASSED

An Act To Establish the Provision of Emergency Medical Services as an 
Essential Service

LR 2352 PASSED
An Act To Expand Access to Mental Health and Crisis Care

LR 2353 TABLED
An Act Regarding Disciplinary and Grievance Policy Procedures and 
Outcomes in State Correctional Facilities

LR 2498 PASSED
Resolve, Directing the Maine Human Rights Commission To Extend Its Pilot 
Program To Investigate and Report on Incidents of Harassment Due to 
Housing Status, Lack of Employment and Other Issues

LR 2502 PASSED
An Act To Facilitate Data Collection in Order To Eliminate Profiling in Maine

LR 2503 PASSED

Page 30 of 34 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PMOffice of the Executive Director

130th Legislature - Second Regular Session 
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests 

October 25, 2021

Action

P 34



Representative Talbot Ross of Portland
An Act To Increase Opportunities in the Cannabis Industry by Removing 
Restrictions Related to Certain Convictions for Drug Offenses

LR 2508 PASSED
Resolve, To Reestablish and Continue the Work of the Criminal Records 
Review Committee

Representative Tepler of Topsham
LR 2244 FAILED

An Act To Improve Children's Mental Health by Requiring Insurance 
Coverage for COVID-19-related Mental Health Treatment

Representative Theriault of China
LR 2443 PASSED

An Act To Amend the Laws Governing the Maine Length of Service Award 
Program

LR 2444 PASSED
An Act To Attract and Retain Firefighters Using the Maine Length of Service 
Award Program

Senator Timberlake of Androscoggin
LR 2148 FAILED

An Act To Preserve the Freedom and Rights of the People of the State of 
Maine Regarding Vaccinations

LR 2151 FAILED
Resolve, To Allow Ronald Caron To Sue the State

LR 2394 FAILED
An Act To Prevent the Prohibition of the Use of Refrigerants

LR 2496 FAILED
An Act To Give Back Excess Revenue to the People of the State of Maine

Representative Tuell of East Machias
LR 2246 FAILED

An Act Requiring Local Approval of the Machias Causeway Replacement 
Project
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Representative Tuell of East Machias
LR 2405 FAILED

An Act To Promote Maine Seafood

LR 2406 FAILED
An Act To Incrementally Change the Maine Public Employees Retirement 
System Penalty for Early Retirement for Members Working as Educators in 
the System from 1983 to 1993

LR 2408 FAILED
An Act To Address the School Bus Driver Shortage

Senator Vitelli of Sagadahoc
LR 2166 FAILED

An Act To Establish the Lobster Roll as the Maine State Sandwich

LR 2293 PASSED
An Act To Support Municipal Broadband Infrastructure through Incentives 
and Competition

LR 2295 PASSED
An Act To Review Utility Rates

LR 2296 FAILED
An Act To Clarify the Definition and Functions of Long-term Care Pharmacies

LR 2300 FAILED
An Act To Promote Road Safety for Bicyclists and Pedestrians

LR 2302 PASSED
An Act To Facilitate Net Energy Generation Billing

LR 2381 PASSED
An Act To Improve Access to Transcripts and Diplomas

Representative Wadsworth of Hiram
LR 2494 FAILED

An Act To Exclude Capital Purchases from the Forestry Excise Tax 
Calculation
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Representative Warren of Hallowell
LR 2183 FAILED

An Act Regarding the Maine Information and Analysis Center

LR 2366 FAILED
An Act To Reduce the Percentage of Light Transmittance Required for Motor 
Vehicle Windows

Representative White of Waterville
LR 2346 PASSED

An Act To Make Interfering with an Election Official a Class C Crime

LR 2397 TABLED
An Act To Clarify COVID-19 Sick Leave Reimbursement for School 
Employees

Representative Williams of Bar Harbor
LR 2424 FAILED

An Act To Update and Clarify the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act and 
Provide for Greater Transparency 

Senator Woodsome of York
LR 2168 FAILED

An Act Regarding Credit Checks

LR 2267 FAILED
An Act To Prohibit the Electronic Scanning of Driver's Licenses by Certain 
Retail Establishments

Representative Zager of Portland
LR 2437 PASSED

Resolve, To Establish the Advisory Panel To Better Understand and Make 
Recommendations Regarding the Implications of Genome-editing 
Technology for the Citizens of the State

Representative Zeigler of Montville
LR 2174 FAILED

An Act Regarding Public Utility Investments
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An Act To Address Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances Pollution 
from State-owned Waste Facilities

Total number of bills accepted: 107 
Total number of bills tabled: 4 
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Fiscal Briefing 

November 18, 2021 
Prepared by the Office of Fiscal & Program Review 

 

1. General Fund Revenue Update (see attached) 
 

Total General Fund Revenue - FY 2022 ($'s in Millions) 
  Budget Actual Var. % Var. Prior Year % Change 
October $357.5  $421.8  $64.2  18.0% $366.4  15.1% 
FYTD $1,515.4  $1,708.7  $193.3  12.8% $1,387.0  23.2% 

 

General Fund revenue was over budget by $64.2 million (18.0%) for the month of October and over 
budget by $193.3 million (12.8%) for the fiscal year to date.  

Individual income tax revenue was over budget by $24.8 million (16.2%) for the month and by $53.1 
million (7.9%) for the fiscal year to date.  For the month of October, a negative variance in individual 
income tax withholding was offset by positive variances in the other individual income tax lines, and for 
the fiscal year to date, only individual income tax refunds (more refunds paid than budgeted) was 
experiencing a negative variance. Corporate income tax revenue was over budget by $15.1 million 
(151.3%) for the month and by $50.4 million (73.4%) for the fiscal year to date. Sales and use tax 
revenue for October (September sales) was over budget by $21.9 million (13.3%) for the month and by 
$91.6 million (13.2%) for the fiscal year to date.   

2.  Highway Fund Revenue Update (see attached) 

Total Highway Fund Revenue - FY 2022 ($'s in Millions) 
  Budget Actual Var. % Var. Prior Year % Change 
October $30.6  $29.6  ($0.9) -3.1% $29.9  -1.0% 
FYTD $117.9  $121.4  $3.5  3.0% $116.2  4.5% 

 

Highway Fund revenue was under budget by $0.9 million (-3.1%) for the month of October but over 
budget by $3.5 million (3.0%) for the fiscal year to date. 

Fuel taxes were under budget by $1.1 million for the month but over budget by $1.4 million (1.8%) for 
the fiscal year to date.  Motor vehicle registrations and fees were slightly below budget for the month 
but over budget by $1.4 million (4.1%) for the fiscal year to date. 

3.  Cash Balances Update  

The average balance in the cash pool for October was $3,800.1 million, an increase from September’s 
average of $3,758.8 million. The increase was largely the result of increases in the General Fund and 
Independent Agency Funds balances partially offset by a decrease in Highway Fund balances. The 
average Highway Fund balance in October was $38.2 million, a decrease from September’s average of 
$52.4 million, largely reflecting construction season spending.  

4.  Economic and Revenue Forecast Meetings 

The Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission (CEFC) met on Friday, October 29th to review and 
update the economic forecast for its November 1st report. The CEFC made relatively minor changes to 
its April 2021 forecast. Of particular note, the CEFC forecast for personal income was revised up in all 
years - from 5.0% to 5.2% in 2021, from 0.2% to 0.5% in 2022, from 4.1% to 4.6% in 2023, from 4.3% 
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to 4.8% in 2024 and from 4.5% to 4.6% in 2025. These revisions reflect stronger assumed wage growth 
for 2021 through 2024. The CEFC also revised its forecast for the Consumer Price Index (CPI) up for 
2021 and 2022, from 2.4% to 4.4% in 2021 and from 2.2% to 3.5% in 2022, leaving 2022 through 2025 
unchanged at 2.1% annually. This change reflects higher inflation in recent months due to several forces 
that the CEFC expects will continue through early 2022, including an uptick in consumer spending due 
to pent-up demand, supply bottlenecks and rising energy prices. 

The CEFC summary of the major changes follows. The Revenue Forecasting Committee (RFC) is 
scheduled to meet November 23rd to review and update the revenue forecast to comply with its statutory 
reporting date of December 1st. 

 

Calendar Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Wage & Salary Employment (Annual Percentage Change)

CEFC Forecast 02/2020 0.5% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 -6.4% 4.0% 2.3% 0.7% 0.1% 0.1%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 -6.4% 3.7% 2.3% 1.0% 0.7% 0.7%
  Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 0.0% -0.3% 0.0% 0.3% 0.6% 0.6%

 Personal Income (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 4.1% 4.0% 3.7% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 7.6% 5.0% 0.2% 4.1% 4.3% 4.5%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 7.9% 5.2% 0.5% 4.6% 4.8% 4.6%
  Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 0.3% 0.2% 0.3% 0.5% 0.5% 0.1%

 Wage and Salary Income (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 4.1% 3.7% 3.4% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 1.4% 5.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 2.9% 5.5% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 4.0%
  Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 1.5% 0.5% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 0.0%

 CPI (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 1.2% 2.4% 2.2% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 1.2% 4.4% 3.5% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
  Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 0.0% 2.0% 1.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

From CEFC October 29, 2021 Meeting 

November 2021 vs. April 21 CEFC Forecast 
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General Fund Revenue
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (FY 2022)

 October 2021 Revenue Variance Report

Updated 11/15/21

Revenue Category
October '21 

Budget
October '21 

Actual
October '21 

Variance Budget Actual Variance Variance %

% Change 
from Prior 

Year

Sales and Use Tax 1 165,271,846 187,191,141 21,919,295 691,620,902 783,191,630 91,570,728 13.2% 24.5% 1,805,656,922

Service Provider Tax 4,188,559 4,322,485 133,926 16,754,238 17,125,567 371,329 2.2% -7.8% 51,000,000

Individual Income Tax 153,300,000 178,104,455 24,804,455 671,300,000 724,432,088 53,132,088 7.9% 22.8% 1,844,500,000

Corporate Income Tax 10,000,000 25,132,520 15,132,520 68,700,000 119,096,688 50,396,688 73.4% 70.5% 220,033,737

Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 2 13,932,129 14,765,991 833,862 51,483,609 53,271,665 1,788,056 3.5% 8.1% 150,427,000

Insurance Companies Tax 8,756,470 6,708,282 (2,048,188) 9,295,523 9,424,667 129,144 1.4% 16.2% 88,250,000

Estate Tax 1,495,679 6,291,270 4,795,591 5,666,903 8,858,259 3,191,356 56.3% -18.7% 25,850,000

Other Taxes and Fees * 22,901,813 20,090,735 (2,811,078) 52,614,282 51,201,398 (1,412,884) -2.7% 7.7% 146,319,687

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 1,048,535 459,835 (588,700) 4,453,257 2,012,115 (2,441,142) -54.8% -37.0% 12,416,881

Income from Investments 204,618 556,990 352,372 654,610 1,723,197 1,068,587 163.2% 25.5% 2,937,863

Transfer from Lottery Commission 5,146,398 7,001,996 1,855,598 19,747,177 24,189,024 4,441,847 22.5% 5.6% 60,000,000

Transfers to Tax Relief Programs * (365,000) (368) 364,632 (260,000) (542,792) (282,792) -108.8% -257.3% (76,150,000)

Transfers for Municipal Revenue Sharing (20,157,881) (22,658,084) (2,500,203) (67,304,013) (78,921,985) (11,617,972) -17.3% -58.9% (180,250,232)

Other Revenue * (8,173,628) (6,186,276) 1,987,352 (9,323,458) (6,370,688) 2,952,770 31.7% 55.1% 28,158,071

Totals 357,549,538 421,780,972 64,231,434 1,515,403,030 1,708,690,833 193,287,803 12.8% 23.2% 4,179,149,929

  *  Additional detail by subcategory for these categories is presented on the following page.

  1 /  Includes revenue from adult-use marijuana sales taxes of $1.1 million for October and $3.6 million for the fiscal year to date. 

  2 /  Includes revenue from adult-use marijuana excise taxes of $0.5 million for October and $1.9 million for the fiscal year to date.

Fiscal Year-To-Date
FY 2022 

Budgeted Totals
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General Fund Revenue
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (FY 2022)

 October 2021 Revenue Variance Report

Updated 11/15/21

Revenue Category
October '21 

Budget
October '21 

Actual
October '21 

Variance Budget Actual Variance Variance %

% Change 
from Prior 

Year

Detail of Other Taxes and Fees:
  - Property Tax - Unorganized Territory 13,331,852 12,528,743 (803,109) 13,331,852 12,528,743 (803,109) -6.0% -0.2% 14,813,169
  - Real Estate Transfer Tax 2,766,082 1,227,393 (1,538,689) 5,594,355 5,872,523 278,168 5.0% 31.0% 22,570,549
  - Liquor Taxes and Fees 1,867,183 1,922,006 54,823 8,349,537 8,747,207 397,670 4.8% 62.6% 22,093,824
  - Corporation Fees and Licenses 229,538 330,311 100,773 2,460,702 1,890,181 (570,521) -23.2% -38.6% 10,438,649
  - Telecommunication Excise Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 100.0% 6,200,000
  - Finance Industry Fees 2,198,914 1,854,950 (343,964) 8,795,656 8,137,980 (657,676) -7.5% 3.6% 26,916,990
  - Milk Handling Fee 52,526 203,725 151,199 714,539 583,599 (130,940) -18.3% -66.4% 1,777,656
  - Racino Revenue 634,241 804,935 170,694 2,638,426 3,634,765 996,339 37.8% 82.4% 7,131,739
  - Boat, ATV and Snowmobile Fees 167,474 147,014 (20,460) 1,292,149 1,297,485 5,336 0.4% -3.7% 4,523,561
  - Hunting and Fishing License Fees 796,574 454,179 (342,395) 5,980,768 5,376,367 (604,401) -10.1% -14.9% 15,989,294
  - Other Miscellaneous Taxes and Fees 857,429 617,479 (239,950) 3,456,298 3,132,548 (323,750) -9.4% 11.3% 13,864,256
       Subtotal - Other Taxes and Fees 22,901,813 20,090,735 (2,811,078) 52,614,282 51,201,398 (1,412,884) -2.7% 7.7% 146,319,687

Detail of Other Revenue:
  - Liquor Sales and Operations 1,823 100 (1,723) 8,994 6,728 (2,266) -25.2% -66.8% 28,500
  - Targeted Case Management (DHHS) 6,476 0 (6,476) 40,312 0 (40,312) -100.0% -100.0% 83,160
  - State Cost Allocation Program 1,828,007 2,200,851 372,844 6,038,415 10,062,293 4,023,878 66.6% -1.2% 22,070,666
  - Unclaimed Property Transfer 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 6,200,000
  - Tourism Transfer (6,082,355) (6,686,517) (604,162) (14,869,000) (15,473,162) (604,162) -4.1% 9.4% (14,872,600)
  - Transfer to Maine Milk Pool (492,146) (698,202) (206,056) (2,457,306) (3,747,400) (1,290,094) -52.5% 29.6% (5,992,693)
  - Transfer to STAR Transportation Fund (2,869,689) (3,249,474) (379,785) (7,012,000) (7,391,785) (379,785) -5.4% 25.4% (7,012,000)
  - Other Miscellaneous Revenue (565,744) 2,246,966 2,812,710 8,927,127 10,172,639 1,245,512 14.0% 28.7% 27,653,038

       Subtotal - Other Revenue (8,173,628) (6,186,276) 1,987,352 (9,323,458) (6,370,688) 2,952,770 31.7% 55.1% 28,158,071

Detail of Transfers to Tax Relief Programs:
  - Me. Resident Prop. Tax Program (Circuitbreake 0 146 146 0 601 601 N/A -52.1% 0
  - BETR - Business Equipment Tax Reimb. (400,000) (514) 399,486 (400,000) (52,603) 347,397 86.8% 73.5% (19,100,000)
  - BETE - Municipal Bus. Equip. Tax Reimb. 35,000 0 (35,000) 140,000 (490,790) (630,790) -450.6% -190.5% (57,050,000)
      Subtotal - Tax Relief Transfers (365,000) (368) 364,632 (260,000) (542,792) (282,792) -108.8% -257.3% (76,150,000)

Inland Fisheries and Wildlife Revenue - Total 1,056,054 652,880 (403,174) 6,511,988 6,265,410 (246,578) -3.8% -20.3% 21,471,298

FY 2022 
Budgeted Totals

Fiscal Year-To-Date
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Highway Fund Revenue
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (FY 2022)

 October 2021 Revenue Variance Report

Updated 11/15/21

Revenue Category
October '21 

Budget
October '21 

Actual
October '21 

Variance Budget Actual Variance
% 

Variance

% Change 
from Prior 

Year

Fuel Taxes:

  - Gasoline Tax 18,187,726 16,938,744 (1,248,982) 72,578,476 72,345,438 (233,038) -0.3% 8.4% 200,950,000

  - Special Fuel and Road Use Taxes 4,480,056 4,534,105 54,049 16,217,525 17,965,926 1,748,401 10.8% 10.4% 46,898,199

  - Transcap Transfers - Fuel Taxes (1,653,893) (1,578,695) 75,198 (6,516,189) (6,601,667) (85,478) -1.3% -8.1% (18,211,727)

  - Other Fund Gasoline Tax Distributions (454,820) (423,587) 31,233 (1,814,970) (1,809,142) 5,828 0.3% -7.5% (5,025,156)

      Subtotal - Fuel Taxes 20,559,069 19,470,567 (1,088,502) 80,464,842 81,900,555 1,435,713 1.8% 8.9% 224,611,316

Motor Vehicle Registration and Fees:

  - Motor Vehicle Registration Fees 6,034,368 5,763,428 (270,940) 26,408,643 25,068,152 (1,340,491) -5.1% -9.2% 69,162,203

  - License Plate Fees 122,183 34,350 (87,833) 1,417,133 1,519,604 102,471 7.2% 4.7% 3,652,523

  - Long-term Trailer Registration Fees 712,183 1,119,296 407,113 2,632,446 3,879,432 1,246,986 47.4% 7.8% 10,884,523

  - Title Fees 1,334,739 1,174,640 (160,099) 5,072,484 5,390,796 318,312 6.3% -5.2% 14,325,795

  - Motor Vehicle Operator License Fees 880,373 967,807 87,434 3,250,412 4,044,984 794,572 24.4% 6.3% 9,698,036

  - Transcap Transfers - Motor Vehicle Fees 0 0 0 (5,041,605) (4,770,250) 271,355 5.4% 5.2% (16,518,054)

      Subtotal - Motor Vehicle Reg. & Fees 9,083,846 9,059,521 (24,325) 33,739,513 35,132,717 1,393,204 4.1% -5.3% 91,205,026

Motor Vehicle Inspection Fees 232,489 72,695 (159,795) 996,706 809,219 (187,487) -18.8% -3.7% 3,202,500

Other Highway Fund Taxes and Fees 101,023 129,996 28,973 447,936 567,519 119,583 26.7% 2.6% 1,267,454

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 50,534 114,691 64,157 202,136 461,538 259,402 128.3% 47.5% 606,412
Interest Earnings 7,240 20,050 12,810 28,956 70,628 41,672 143.9% 8.9% 86,864
Other Highway Fund Revenue 531,120 762,490 231,370 1,975,161 2,441,169 466,008 23.6% 17.7% 9,739,321
Totals 30,565,321 29,630,009 (935,312) 117,855,250 121,383,345 3,528,095 3.0% 4.5% 330,718,893

Fiscal Year-To-Date
FY 2022 
Budgeted 

Totals
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION 
AUTHORIZED STUDIES 

Legislative Council Meeting – November 18, 2021 
 

   

Study Commission/Committee Study 
 

Assigned 
Staff 

Number of authorized meetings 
held to date 

Report 
Date 

Chairs Status or comment 

Legislative Council Study Establishing 
And Implementing a System of Using 
Racial Impact Statements for Legislation 
LD 2, P.L. 2021, c. 21 

Danielle Fox 
Suzanne 
Gresser 
Darlene Shores 
Lynch 

Three of 4 meetings held Initial 
11/1/21 

Report on 
Pilot 

12/15/22 

Rep. Talbot 
Ross  

 Draft proposal 
considered.   

 Agreement reached with 
UMS and the Permanent 
Comm’n on the Status of 
Racial, Indigenous and 
Tribal Populations 

College Affordability and Completion 
Commission to Study College Affordability 
and Completion 
LD 247, Resolve 2021, c. 103 

Drafting 
assistance only  
Karen Nadeau 
Rachel Olson 

First meeting scheduled for 11/17 1/22/22 Sen. Daughtry  
Rep. Crockett 

UMS system staffing – 
using Legislature audio 
and YouTube channel for 
meetings 

Criminal Records Review Committee 
LD 563, Resolve 2021, c. 121 

Peggy Reinsch 
Jane Orbeton 
Darlene Shores 
Lynch 

Two of 5 authorized meetings have 
been held  

12/15/2021 Rep. Talbot 
Ross, Sen. 

Bailey 

Report deadline extension 
(12/15) and additional 
meeting request approved 

Increase Housing Opportunities 
Commission to Increase Housing 
Opportunities in Maine by Studying Zoning 
and Land Use Restrictions 
(LD 609, Resolve 2021, c. 59) 

Hillary Risler 
Samuel Prawer 
Kristin Brawn 

Six of 7 authorized meetings have 
been held 

12/15/21 Speaker 
Fecteau, Sen. 

Hickman 

 Report deadline 
extension (12/15) and 
additional meeting 
request approved. 

 Report drafting in 
process – final meeting 
scheduled for 12/2 

Probate Courts into Judicial Branch 
Resolve, To Establish the Commission to 
Create a Plant to Incorporate the Probate 
Courts into the Judicial Branch 
LD 719, Resolve 2021, c. 104 

Janet Stocco 
Samuel Senft 
Darlene Shores 
Lynch 

Two of 4 authorized meetings have 
been held 

12/15/21 Rep. Cardone, 
Sen. Carney 

Report deadline extension 
approved (12/15) 

Paid Family and Medical Leave 
Commission to Develop a Paid Family and 
Medical Leave Benefits Program 
LD 1559, Resolve 2021, c. 122 

Anna Broome 
Colleen 
McCarthy Reid 
Kristin Brawn 

Two of 4 authorized meetings held 2/1/22 Sen. Daughtry, 
Rep. Cloutier 

Contracted actuarial study 
included in duties. 
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION 
AUTHORIZED STUDIES 

Legislative Council Meeting – November 18, 2021 
 

   

Study Commission/Committee Study 
 

Assigned 
Staff 

Number of authorized meetings 
held to date 

Report 
Date 

Chairs Status or comment 

Creating Basic Income Security 
Committee to Study the Feasibility of 
Creating Basic Income Security 
LD 1603, P.L. 2021, c. 405 

Steve Langlin 
Lynne Caswell 
(Anna Broome) 
Kristin Brawn 

No meetings held – 4 authorized 12/1/21   One gubernatorial 
appointment pending. 

 Sec. 1, subsection 7 of 
authorizing statute 
requires outside 
funding before meeting 
(by 11/17).  

  No new funds 
received. 

Review of Tax Expenditures by the 
Legislature Working Group to Review the 
Process of Ongoing Review of Tax 
Expenditures by the Legislature 
JO, SP #578 

Julie Jones 
 

All 4 authorized meetings have been 
held 

12/1/21 Sen. Libby, 
Rep. Terry 

Report draft in progress 

Replace Certain Stigmatizing Language 
Resolve, to Replace Certain Stigmatizing 
Language in the Maine Revised Statutes 
with Respectful Language 
LD 1588, Resolve 2021, c. 120 
 

Revisor of 
Statutes 

N/A 1/15/22 N/A  

Ongoing statutory studies 
Right to Know (Advisory Committee) 
010-30A-3327-01 
T 1 §411 

Peggy Reinsch 
Colleen 
McCarthy Reid 
Anna Broome 
Rachel Olson 
Darlene Shores 
Lynch 

Three of 4 required meetings held (5 
planned) 

1/15 
annually 

Rep. Thom 
Harnett 

Fourteen of 16 members 
appointed 

One President appointed 
vacancy (recently expired 
term).  One gubernatorial 

vacancy (new seat) 
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION 
AUTHORIZED STUDIES 

Legislative Council Meeting – November 18, 2021 
 

   

Study Commission/Committee Study 
 

Assigned 
Staff 

Number of authorized meetings 
held to date 

Report 
Date 

Chairs Status or comment 

Marijuana Advisory Commission 
T 28-B c. 1 sub c. 9 

Samuel Prawer 
Dan Tartakoff 
Kirstin Brawn 

One meeting held (no further 
meetings planned) 

 

1/15 
annually 

Sen. Miramant, 
Rep. Pierce 

 PL c. 363 (effective 
10/18) added 6 
members to 
Commission.  
Appointments by 
Speaker and President 
pending 

 Report draft in progress 
Education and Employment Outcomes 
Task Force 
T. 20-A c. 437 

Lynne Caswell 
Rachel Olson 
Kristin Brawn 

Up to 4 meetings annually 11/1 
annually 

  15 members, two 
outstanding 
appointments.  

  Leg Council authorized 
to allow meetings if 
appointments are still 
not complete after 
11/18 

State Compensation Commission 
T 3, § 2-B 

Lauren 
Metayer 

 1/15 even-
numbered 

years 

 No members appointed – 
4 from Speaker and 
President pending 

Citizen Trade Policy Commission 
T. 10, §11 

Contract staff - 
unfilled 

At least twice annually 
One meeting scheduled 

Trade 
agreement 

impact 
assessment 

every 2 
years 

 

Sen. Hickman, 
Rep. Gere 

22 members 
Gubernatorial 

appointments pending 
 

Other Legislative Council-approved studies (staffed by department/agency) 
Registration Plate Working Group 
Resolve 2021, c. 108 

Secretary of 
State, BMV 

4 meetings 2/1/2022 none specified 
in authorizing 

legislation 

10 members – 
 pending 3 appointments 

from the Secretary of State 
Task Force To Study the Coordination of 
Services and Expansion of Educational 
Programs for Young Adults with 

Dept. of Educ. Minimum of 4 meetings Within one 
year of 

convening 

Named by 
DOE 

Commissioner 

27 members –  
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION 
AUTHORIZED STUDIES 

Legislative Council Meeting – November 18, 2021 
 

   

Study Commission/Committee Study 
 

Assigned 
Staff 

Number of authorized meetings 
held to date 

Report 
Date 

Chairs Status or comment 

Intellectual or Developmental Disabilities 
or Acquired Brain Injury 
Resolve 2021, c. 116 

All (3) legislative 
appointments have been 

made 
Maine Health Data Organization Health 
Information Advisory Committee 
Resolve 2021, c. 423 

MHDO staff At least 4 per year  Chosen by 
members 
annually 

11 members – 
All (2) Legislative 

appointments have been 
made 
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE/FIRST REGULAR SESSION 
AUTHORIZED INTERIM COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

   

Interim meetings of Joint Standing Committees or subcommittees 
Agriculture, Conservation & Forestry Karen Nadeau 

Darlene Shores Lynch 
  

Criminal Justice and Public Safety Jane Orbeton 
 

  

Education and Cultural Affairs 
 

Hillary Risler 
Samuel Senft 
 

Three meetings held – anticipate request for additional 
meeting to be scheduled in December 

Briefings 

Environment and Natural Resources Deirdre Schneider 
Daniel Tartakoff 
 

One authorized meeting - 
Cancelled 

Offsite tour 

Energy, Utilities and Technology 
 

Daniel Tartakoff 
Deirdre Schneider 
 

Four of6 authorized meetings have been held 
(planned bi-weekly) 

Various topics including 
carryovers, report-backs 
and briefings 

Health and Human Services 
 

Anna Broome 
 

One authorized meeting held 
(additional Joint meeting with GOC on 11/10) 

 

Briefings 

Health Coverage, Insurance and Financial 
Services 

Colleen McCarthy 
 

One scheduled for 11/19  

Inland Fisheries and Wildlife Kristin Brawn   
Innovation, Development, Economic 
Advancement and Business 

Rachel Olson 
 

  

Judiciary 
 

Peggy Reinsch  
Samuel Senft 
 

  

Labor and Housing 
 

Steven Langlin 
Colleen McCarthy Reid 
 

  

Marine Resources Lynne Caswell 
 

One authorized meeting held 
  

Briefings 

State and Local Government Lynne Caswell 
 

Two of 3 authorized meetings have been held 
 

Roads subcommittee 

Transportation Samuel Prawer 
Karen Nadeau 
 

  

Veteran and Legal Affairs Janet Stocco 
Samuel Prawer 
 

  

 
P 48



130th Maine State Legislature 

Legislative Council  

Tabled Bill Requests from October 25, 2021 

SPONSOR:  Spkr. Ryan Michael Fecteau 

LR #  Title  Action 

2468  An Act To Require Cultural Competency Training in State-
licensed Assisted Living Facilities, Nursing Homes, 
Rehabilitation Facilities and Independent Living Facilities 

Tabled  10/25/21 

SPONSOR:  Rep. David H. McCrea 

LR #  Title  Action 

2230  An Act To Clarify the Retroactive Granting of Sick Leave 
Days to Public School Employees Affected by COVID-19 

Tabled  10/25/21 

SPONSOR:  Rep. Rachel Talbot Ross 

LR #  Title  Action 

2353  An Act Regarding Disciplinary and Grievance Policy 
Procedures and Outcomes in State Correctional Facilities 

Tabled  10/25/21 

SPONSOR:  Rep. Bruce White 

LR #  Title  Action 

2397  An Act To Clarify COVID-19 Sick Leave Reimbursement for 
School Employees 

Tabled  10/25/21 
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November 2, 202 1 

Ms. Suzanne M. Gresser 
Executive Director 

LORING COMMERCE CENTRE 

State of Maine Legislative Council 
115 State House Station 
Augusta, ME 04333-01 15 

Dear Ms. Gresser: 

Pmsuant to ''Section 13080-L Annual Report'' of the Loring Developmenl Authority of Maine's 
(LDA) enabling legislation, please find enclosed a report of the activities of the LDA for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The report includes a summary of the LOA ·s development 
activities and audited financ ial statements for FY2 1. Subsequent events through October I 5, 
2021 and proposed activities for FY22 are also reported. 

If you have any questions or need additional inf'orrnation, please don't hesi late to cal I. 

Very truly yours, 

( / .. LJ)!L)f7? 
Carl W. Flora 
President & CEO 

Enclosure 

cc: Senator Chip Curry - Chair 
Representative Ti f'fany Roberts - Chair 
Committee on Innovation, Development, Economic Advancement and Business 

Loring Development Autho rity of Maine 
154 Devclopmenr Drive, Suite I~ Limtstone, Maine 04750 

Telephone: (207) 328-7005 Facsimile: (207) 328-6811 Em,iil: LDA@Loring.org TTY: 1-800-437-1220 
This ins1i1u1io11 is an equal opportunity pnwitlcr. To file a compbint of tliscriminution, write to the Loring Development Authority of M,1inc. 
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 

Report on Activity at Maine's Largest 

Industrial - Commercial - Aviation - Business Park 
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Paragraph 13080-L 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 
July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 
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PARAGRAPH lA: 

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 

DESCRIPTION OF THE AUTHORITY'S OPERATIONS 

Loring Development Authority (LOA) is responsible for the redevelopment of the properties of 

the state's largest industrial park, Loring Commerce Centre, formerly Loring Air Force Base, in 

support of new job creation and new economic activity. LDA manages the 3,700-acre business­

commercial and industrial park including a 1,600-acre aviation complex; serves as landlord to 

leasehold businesses and supplies municipal-type services to residents and businesses that 

collectively employ approximately 750 people and occupy 1 million square feet of space in 

numerous major buildings. LDA operates a water treatment plant, water distribution system, and 

a wastewater collection system; maintains and plows 26 miles of roadways; performs grounds 

maintenance on hundreds of acres of developed and developable property; and through 

arrangements with the Town of Limestone and others, secures fire, ambulance, and law 

enforcement services and contracts for wastewater treatment. The LDA works with prospective 

businesses to develop opportunities to reuse additional facilities and properties, create additional 

employment and economic activity both at Loring and in the broader region. 

Businesses at Loring represent industrial, manufacturing, agriculture, forestry, energy, 

telecommunications, commercial, back-office, education, recreation, conservation and aviation 

sectors. A profile of the employers at Loring, included at the end of this report, illustrates the 

significant level and diversity of economic activity generated by the reuse of facilities at Loring 

Commerce Centre. 

- 2 -



P 54

PARAGRAPH lB: 

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR2021 

The attached Independent Auditor's Report was approved by the Loring Development Authority 
Board of Trustees on October 13, 2021. 
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I ORIM, DEVl'I I Will Fi, I 1\\ ITHOH 11 '\' OF M1\ INF 

Mi\NJ\(;! \.ll'Nrs IJISCUSSlllN AND i\>i;\I YSlS 
For the l'i:cnl Years hlrlcJ June 10,202 I a:1,I 2020 

lIN.~lJDITFD 

Thi.". m;111agcment of !hL· !..oring lkvdnpmi:nt ,'\uthori1y nf l'vfain,: (I.DA) is pr()viding 11ie following 
discussi<\ll n11d analy:,is oft.he llrlnnci:il ,1,;:.t!vitics for the yenr ended June :rn, 202 l. The! .DA is a 
component unil ,1f the State. of i'dainc with n miss inn to create jobs and positive economic growth 
by rcdevehpme-nt of arrrn~imatcly 3,700 Hcn:s of the !'ormr:r Loring Air Fon.:.c !1ase located in 
Lirncsione, rvtainc. 

Th,~ m;i.ntigcrncnt's di..;;(11:;:~ion and analysis is intended tu rn:ike reporls more undcr~>tandabk\ ensier 
to l\~nd, ccHnprehensibk and lo cxpliiin signiliurnt c-hangl:S and fin:-11u·ial [JOSitions betwi.:.cn the 
current nnd pri1 )1 :,.'c:-1r. 

Financi<1I I ligW_ighls 

e Tolai net pPsi1 ion decn~•·1scd by $1 J J2,677. Opt:ratit"lll'> ,kcreased nt't po.silinn by 
S 1 ,(1()1.l,1130. Revl'nues were np due u1 ,111 increase in qatc nssi~;tancc '.•:hilc expenses \Vt~re 

down du1.'. !o dccr~,i~;L:s in sal:nie~. utilitil~:-; and lrncnlkc.tablc acc,11rnt.s. 

• Total rc\·c1n1cs ofSJJ1.1.(,,608 an' compri:~cd of 16% frurn leas~ revenue. t.J:% from stnlc 
;1,-;;-;islanct\ ! 71.!<i from fe<h:;rn! grnn1!;. 1 7°1◊ from ,vater uwl sewer h.:es and 5~ .. 0 l'rnm other 
LDA opcrati<_,ns. 

• Due hi ~l dw.lleny,ing ecoth)!llic environnwnt nel jnlv; have declined over 1ht; past fiscol 
ycm. 

• The :mnual ( ·;1rctaker gr;1nt revenue for the m:iin!cnam:e anti operation nfessenci:ll services 
and foci\ity nwin!ena11cc censed in Sl'.ptc-rnbcr 200'1, The l.DA now rcli(.'s on lease income, 
state assistance Jnd other operations to suppori these opcrntions, The I ,DA 1 s c.i.ist for 
facility rnjintcrwncc~ oper:1tion:,; of waler distrihulion and se•,..ver cullection systems, 
111ainll'na11ce nf a nt~lwnrk of ninds, park in:;. !11ts, airlicld pavemcnt.s. togellit:r \vith serviees 
!'nr 1Nastew,1tcr trce.t111cnt, fire, p1llic1...'. ~incl rnnbnlnncc prt•lection wns approximately$ l .9 
million in li:,cal year }J)), l. 

lfasiG_.!'l.!_1a11cio1l ')t_e,Jeniunls 

The I .DA 's ti11anci,1l rq1oris arc prqrnicd 11si11g propriLtary rund (enterprise fi111d) accoun1ing 
which i:1 the :--Hnh: lHsis u~; privatc-sLc!nr husinc~s.: entt.:.rpri.-:;c:,; nnct utili1.es the accrual basis of 
;1ccoun1i11g. Thi;: {1ccntal lrnsi" nf account inµ: record,; income 3!: It j,:; earned and co!>!":; as incurred, 
The basis: ;·innncial staleme.nts incluJe the fol!o\'"'ing: 

Statements of Net Position 
St,1tcm1._;nts of H.cvc111ic,:;, Expenses and ( ·1iangcs in Net Position 
.';.;1_;:itemcn1s nfCa.sh J:hl\VS 

-1-

Chcst c r M. Kearney. Cntiflcd Puhlic Accountant, 
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LO!UN(i LJEVELOl'tv!l·:NI AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISC'IJSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Years h,ded June 30, 202 I ;ind 2020 

UNAUfJJTED 

The Stali.)ments of Nd Position exhibits lhc balance of current and capital assets less current 
liabilities and a net asset balance. As required by GASB 34, t.lic LDA has included the estimated 
fair market value of net assets (structur~s, Vt_;hicles ancJ equiprni.::nt, aviation facilities. roads and 
accessory facilities~ spcLi.tl tJ.sc slructurcs and lnnd) whlch wen.· given to the LDA at no cost by tht:: 
United Slates Air Force. The carrying valui..: of total c-~1pital assets f,::ir the curn:nt year is 
$54,046,878 as compa1\:d to :i capital asset balance of$5:5,0tJX,'.21! fix the prior year ending June 
30, 2.m.o. 

Table I provides con,1"nscd data of the Statements of Net Position for the fiscal vears ended 2021 
and 2020 

Current assets 
Net capital assets 
Notes receivable, ni;;~t of current portion 

Total Assets 

Deforrcd Outflc_rws of Resources 

Curn:nt l.,iabililies 
Long-term Liabilities 

Totul f .iahiJities 

DdCrred Inflows of Resources 

'f'utal Net Position 

Tahl<' 1 

Nl'I Position 

s 

$ 

2.0.21 2020 

I ,006,901 ' 1,251,725 
5,1,046,878 :iS,098,271 
___j,QJJ)J _300,QQ() 

s2.10J.s_s1 560649 226 

_ .8.807 _ 23J)2 

2,394,538 2,123,734 
1.0983[ 7 1.304,]4) 

3,492,855 3,427,877 

_168,817 _ 461.8·1(, 

St,;15 l,Q l~ t ., 522L8J.a-69i 

The StatcmGnts of Rcvcm1cs, Expenditures nnd Changes in Net Position reports lhc federal and 
state assistance an<l operations revenue, less operating cost:; in order to reflect the drnnge in net 
p1'.lsitil'rn value for tlw currcnt year in cornbinati1m ,vith the rrior year's net position value to reflect 
the net p~>silion balanct· as of Juli(' 301 2021. 

-I I-

Chester M. Kearney. Certifid Public Accountants 
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I< lRINCi DLVELOPMl'NT 1\1 1 lllORITY OF MAIN!·. 

i\l·\N,\< iFMENTS [)]SCI ISSION AND ANALYSIS 
1:t)r thl' Fi:-;cal Years Fnded Jtrn8 'iO. 2021 and :?J)'.~0 

I IN1\Ul >111'1) 

Table 2 shows the d1;111p.es in net position ror 1he fiia:al years 2021 ,m<l 20.W. 

Re.venues: 

Program Rcvc11t1i:s 
State Assis!ance 

General Reve11ues 
Lease and Other 

J"ntal Operatin¼ Ren:nucs 

()pcrating Expen:">cs: 
Salaries and llcnelits 
Travel 
Contracted Scrvi1.'.cs 
Depreciation 
Legal and Audit 
Marketing 
Supplies and f<:.\pcnsc:­
i\,faintenancl:' 

Utilities 
T inco\Jectahlc ,,\ccnunt.s 

Tahh• 2 

Changes in ;\ft Position 

Other Gent~ral and Administrative 

Total Opcrnting Fxpcnses 

()thcr Revenues & F.xpe11:-:c;:; 

Other 

Change in Net Po:~i1inn 

f0'.2 I 

665,9"/1 

f,17)60 

.l.28],23c! 

432,4T/ 
1,599 

569,"/YI 
969,77,1 

6,063 
7.)'17 

65.IIJ,I 
I 97,•I SS 
572,,166 

jl0,41 '! 

2~952.66t_l 

Ll_,.(iQ.9./1311) 

J}f>,7~!] 

$ (l,)JL/,77) 

JQ2Q 

$ 503,306 

QQL2·H 

l I 04.~~Q 

565)37 
2,600 

482,930 
972,3,14 

9,591 
1, l I 0 

84,961 
202,072 
606,308 

13,814 
\22,629 

lcD64 Q.9_6 

u 959,5,\(i) 

U.'l.259 

t (1,820.287) 

The Statements of Cash Flows a.re included. which discloses net ca~h provided by, or used in 
npen1.ting activit ics, nt rncapital financial :1cl ivit ies, Hnd l'rom capital and related financing activities. 
Frnrn these slaternt~n!:;, the rcado.:::r can obtain eomparntive infonnatiun on the sources and uses of 
ca:-ih for the reporkd yc;1rs. 

,J 11-

Chester M. Kearney. Cc11ilicd Puhlic Accountants 
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Y cars Ended June JO, 2021 and 2020 

UNAUDITED 

The Loring Develop!lH~!Jt.8!Jth.Qrily's Funds 

The Loring Development Authority's Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Total revenues and other sources amounted to $ 1,626,608 in 2021 and $1,250,717 in 
2020. Operating revenues for the two years as represented in the tables below totaled $1,283,234 
in 202 1 and $1,104,550 in 2020. Federa l and state grants and assistance represents 52% and 45% 
of the LDA 's operating revenues for the last two years. 

2021 Operating Revenues 

■ Federal & State assistance 

■ Lease revenue 

11 Water and sewer fees 

■ Other 

2020 Operating Revenues 

4% 

-IV-

■ Federal & State assistance 

■ Lease revenue 

II Water and sewer fees 

■ Other 

Chester M. Kearney, Certified Public Accountants 
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LORING JJEVELOPMENT /\UTHORITY OF M/\lNE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSlON AND ANALYS1S 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(JNAUOTTED 

Operating expenses amounted to $2,952,66ll in 202 l :rnd $3,064,096 in 2020. 111e fo llowing charts 
reflect the expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30, 202 1 and 2020. 

2021 Expense Distribution 

■ Salaries and benefits 

■ Depreciation 

■ Util ities 

■ Supplies and expense 

■ Repairs and maintenance 

■ Contri:lcted services 

Uncollectable accounts 

1 All other 

2020 Expense Distribution 

-V-

■ Salaries and benefi ts 

■ Depreciation 

a Utilities 

■ Supplies and expense 

■ Repairs and maintenance 

• Contracted services 

■ Uncollectable occounts 

I All other 

Chester M. Kearney. Certified Public Accountants 
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Capital Asse.l] 

LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHOR.lTY OF MAJNE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Far the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

UNAUDITED 

At U1e end of fiscal year 2021, the Loring Development Authority had land, buildings, 
improvements, structures and facilities of $70,242,283. A significant portion of these assets were 
donated to LOA hy the U.S. Air Force or purchased. Net of depreciation, these assets were recorded 
at $54,046,878. Table 3 shows capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. 

Land 
Buildings 
Equipment and Improvements 
Special Use Structures 
A via ti on Fae ii itics 
Roadways and Accessories 
Pipeline 

Total Net Capital Assets 

Budgeting 

Table 3 

Capital Assets at .June 30 
(Net ofDe1,reciation) 

$ 

$ 

202!. 202Q 

I 0,444,599 $ 10,467,199 
[2,283,915 12,747,432 
5,669,879 5,804,266 
4,972,340 5,233,128 

15,410,879 15,466,615 
3,265,266 3,J 79,631 
2~000,QOO 2,000,000 

54,Q4~I8 $ 5.5.098,271_ 

The LDA provides an annual budget for control and internal purposes only. No legally adopted 
budget is maintained. 

DebJ 

The Loring Development Authority had an operating Linc of Credit debt of $1,700,000 with 
$ l, 700,000 outstanding as of June 30, 2021. 

The LDA entered into a short-term lending agreement in March 2021 with Northern Maine 
Development Commission, receiving funds in the amount of$100,000 secured by second and third 
mortgages on real estate, The balance at June 30, 2021 is $100,000 and is payable in full in 
September 2021. 

The LOA took on bonded debt of$454,720 in 2010 for the purpose of upgrading sewer lines. As 
of June 30, 2021 the balance on this debt is $215,992. 

The LDA entered into a loan agreement with llSDr\ Rural Development in the year ended June 30, 
201.0. The $330,000 proceeds from the note were used to pay off the construction line of credit 
which provided funds for the sewer upgrade project. TI,e balance as of June JO, 2021 is $282,221. 

-Vl-

Chester M, Kearney, Certified Public Accountants 
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AlJTHORlTY OF M/\lNE 

MANi\CiRMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Y cars Ent!cd June .JO, 202 l and 2020 

lJNi\\JDITED 

The LDJ\ entered into a lending agreement with Northern Maine Development Commission, 
receiving funds in the amount of $200,000 secured by assets. The balance at June 30, 2021 is 
$32,219. 

The LDA entered into a lending agreement with Notihern l\•1aine Development Commission in May 
2020, receiving funds in the amount of $200,000 secured by assets. The balance at June 30, 2021 
is $164,.150 

Tn December 2014 the LDA entered into a mortgage agreement with Katahdin Trust Company, 
receiving fonds in the amonnl of$254,000 secured by a real estate. TI1e halance at June 30, 2021 
is $1.15,779. 

In December 2020 the LDA entered into an agreement with the U.S. Small Business 
Administration, receiving funds in the amount of $150,000 through the Economic Injury Disaster 
Loan Program. The balance at June .l0, 2021 is $150,000. 

On .lanuaiy 2, 2019 the Authority entered into an agreement with the Maine Military Authority 
(MMA) by which the Authority received equipment valued at $207,000. Under the tem1s of the 
agreement the Authority can not sell or transfer ownership of the assets for a period of ten ( I 0) 
years. During the ten ( 10) year period the Authority is obligated to pay 25% of any lease revenue 
received for the use of the equipment. 

As of .lune 30, 2021 the equipment is not leased and no payments on the note are anticipated in the 
current tcm1. 

Future D~velopm_enis 

The LDA is working to compensate for the loss of state funding. The LDA has developed 
collaborations with other economic development groups which have proven effective nt identifying 
development prospects and has begun working with private developers who are interested in 
purchasing real estate. Meanwhile, as development has continued and vacant bulldings have been 
returned to productive uses, fewer facility-maintenance resources will be needed. As listed in the 
financial highlights, the LDA has also secured resources from the Air Force to upgrade the water 
treatment plant and water distribution infrastructure and has consolidated waste water systems with 
a local sewer treatment district. Over the longer term, LDA's continued development will create 
more revenue from real estate operations that will be available to invest in repairing, replacing and 
upgrading infrastructure as well as further development efforts. 

CO YID-" 19 has also created additional challenges as potential tenants have paused their expansion 
plans due to the uncertainty created by the pandemic. 

-Vll-

Chester M. Kearney, Certified Public Accountants 
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--------lg. 1-~::.::'".:..:..:r~.::.:'~.::...}P:...::~~.::.::hl;::..:c~~r=Cll=~nK::::'aJ=l~:,_a_n_
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I ·11 12 Dyer Stn:cl, P~squc Isle. Muinc 0'17<i<J- I 550 Ilnrhnra E. McGuire, CPA. CGMA 
207-7M-3 t 71 Fax 207-764-t>.\(,2 Ti111othy P. Poit ras, CPA. CGMA 

To the Boan..l ofTrusl<.:l:S of' lhc 
Loring Develop111c11t i\ ulltority of Maine 

IN DEPENDENT t\UIJI l'CJRS' REPOR I 

We have auLlited the aecontp:mying financial slatt:,ni.:nls of the business-type ot'l ivilics of the Loring 
Development Authority of M:i ine, as of antl fo1· Lhc years ended June 30, 202 1 and 2020, and the 
re lated notes to the linancial statements, whii.:h collel:lively comprise the 1\.111.horily's basic financial 
statements as listed in the tul.Jlt' of contents. 

Management 's Respo11sibili(v for the Fi11a11ciol Stt1teme111s 

Management is rcspon:-.ible fo r the preparation and t'J ir presentation of thest' linanc i<d statements in 
accordance with accou11ti11g principles gcnt!ra lly :1ri.:cp1ed in the Uniteu State~ or' America; this 
includes the des ign, irnplcmemation. and 111aintcna11cc or i!lternal control r<? levant lo the preparation 
and fa ir presentation of li11 ,.111cial s[atemen1s th~11 arc. f'ree from material rnissl.atcmc11t, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

A uditor 's Resµonsibifi(11 

Our responsibil ity is lo ,::,pres$ an opinion on thi.:sc financial statements based 011 our audit. We 
conducted our audit in ,1ci.:ordance with auditing standards generally acceptcu in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financia l audits contained in (,'ov11mme11t Auditing 
Srondards, issued by 111~ Comptroller Oeneral of' the United States. ThoSl' standards require that 
we plan and perform the :iudit to obtain rec1som1blc assurance about whether Ille limmcial ~tatemen1s 
are free from material inisslatement. 

An audit involves performi ng procedures lo ob(;1in auLlit evidence about the a111ou11ts and disclosures 
in the financia l stalenH:nls . The procedures sclcclcd depend on the autlitor·~ j 1101:,111cnt, ineluding the 
assessment of the risk:, of mrih:: rial misswk 111e11t rir lhc linancial statcmenls, whc1l1cr J ue to fraud or 
error. ln maki ng lho~l' risk assessments. the a11ditor ..:onsiders internal control relevant to the entity 's 
preparation and 1·air p1c:,cntatiun of the fi n:rnr.: i:tl stakmc11L~ in order to Jcsi6 11 audi t procedures that 
are appropriate in thl: circumstanc.::s. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity· s internal control. Accordingly. we express no such opi11 iu11. An audit also 
includes evalu.::.11i11g the :1pprnpriatcncss of act.:n11nli11g policies usec.l and Ilic rc:Jsonableness of 
significant accou11( i11g c~ti 111.\les made by nHlllil)_'.,L' ll te111 , as well as evalua1ing the overall presentation 
of the financial slatcrncnts. 
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We believe that !he audit evidence we have ohtaincd i~ sufficient and ;]pµrnpriatc lo provide a basis 
fnr our unniodi lied and adverse audit opinions. 

Summary r~(Opinious 

Opininn Unit 
llusincss-Typc i\ctivi1ics 
Aggregate Discrc1cly PresentcJ Component Units 

rypc or Opinio11 
lJnmodif1cd 
Adverse 

B,ui.\·.for Adt•,_'f.\'C Opinion 011 Aggregllfe Discrete!~• Presented Compmwnt Unit 

Tht~ financial statements referred to above do not include linancial da!a for the Authority's legally 
scparak'. component unit, Loring Industries, LLC. Accounting principles gc11cral!y accepted in the 
United States or America require financial data for !hose componenl units to be reported with the 
li1wncir1! data of the Au1hority unless the Authority also issues lln:meial stalemcn1s for the financial 
reporting entity thal include lhe financial data fr)r its component units. The Authority has not issued 
such rcpnrting entity financial statements. Because of this d~parture rrom accounting principles 
generally ucccptcd in th0 United States of America, 1hc assets. liabilities, net position, revenues, and 
expenses of the aggregate di.scrctcly presented t:omponcnt units would have hccn presented as 
$\P,(,'/,1_ $1(,9.291, $363.38'1. $0 and $1 l'.i,998, respectively. 

A,frerse Opiuiou 

ln 1)ur opinion, because of the significc:nce of the matter discussed In the "Basis for Adverse Opinion 
on Ar.grcgatc Discretely Presented Component Unit" paragraph, the linandnl ½talcments referred to 
nbovc d1.1 not present rairly the finnncial position or 1Jw .1ggrtgate discretely rre~ented component unit 
of the Loring Development Authority of Maine1 as of Jirnc JO, 2021, or the changc-s in financial 
position thereof for !he year then ended in accordrrncc wilh accl'lUnting principks generally accepted 
in the Unikd States of America. 

UnmOlf(fied Opinions 

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecr.s, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Loring Development Authority of 
Maine, ns of June 30

1 
2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in finnncial position, and, where 

applicable, cash nows thereof for the yen.rs then ended in accord:mce with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Suhsta11tial /)ouht about the Organization's Ahili~I' to Co11ti111fl' aJ• a Going Concern 

·rhe .:i.ccomp;rnying financial statements have been prepared assuming th.11 the Organization will 
con1inuc as a going concern. As discussed in Note 21 to the limmciul stntcmcnts, the Organization has 
suffi::rcd 1ecurring sifTnitic.101 reductions in revenues, has a net deficiency in net assets 1 and has stated 
1hat sub:-:tantial douht (xis.ts about its ability to continue as a guing cone.em, Mm1<1gcmcnt's evaluation 
uf the events and conditions and management's plans regarding thost matters a1so are described in 
Note 21. The fin,mci,1! stntements do not include any adjus1mcnls that might result from the outcome 
of this UllC'.t'rt<.1inty. Our opinion is not modified with rL'.spccl to this matter. 
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Uther Maflers 

Required Supplementary lnjimnotion 

Accounting principles gl':nerally accepted in the United States or America require that the 
fvtmrngeme11t's Discus.sion and Analysis on pages I through Vil and the Schedull; of Chang1.~s in Net 
OPEB Liability and Schedule of Employer's Share ofOl'Ell Contrihutions on P:igc 24 be pr,:scmed to 
supplement the basic 11nancial statements. Such informnlion, although not a ptirt of the bttliic financial 
statements, is requin.:d by the UoYcmmenlal Accounting Standards Board, who considers ii tu be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing Ille basic linancial s1ah.'.mcnts in an appropriate 
opcrnlional, ccor1omic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures ro the 
rc4uired suppkmentary inli_mnation in uccordam:c with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of Am~rica, which consisted of i11quirics or management about the methods or preparing 
the information and comparing !he infonnalion for con.'.>i'-tency with management's re~ponscs to our 
inquiries, the basic financial slalcments, and 1.)thcr kno\1,·ledge we obtained during our 11udit of th1.:: 
basic financial stat.cments. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 011 the informatio11 
because the limited proceUures do not provide us with sufikicnt evidence to expr1::,:,; un opinion or 
provide any assurance, 

I Hhc.r Reportinf( Re,1uired by Gm't~rnment Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Governmenl Auditing Standard'.'-, we have also issued our i-~port dated September 
28.' 2021 on our consideralion o[ Loring !Jcvdopment Authority of Maine's intcnml control over 
financial reporting and on our tes1s of compliance with catain provisions of laws, regularions. 
contracts, and grant agrccn11.:nts and t)lher matters. The purpose of that rq,urt is solely to describe the 
-;cope of our testing or i11tcrnal control over linandal reporting and cornpliam.:e and the results of that 
testing, an<l not to provide an opinion on the effectivcntss of the Loring D::v;.,,•Jopment r\uthority's 
interned control over financial reporting or on compliance, That J\;port is an inlegral part or an audit 
perflxmcd in accon.lance wi1h Ciovemrrn.':nl Auditing Standards in considerin~~ Loring Development 
Aulhority of Maine's internal control over limmcial rcponing nnd compliarK~. 

Presque Isle, Maim· 
September 28, 2021 

-3-
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ASSFTS 

Cl.WRFNT ASSETS 

C:ish and tcmpor:ny 111v..:.,,hni::i;h ( Nn!c J) 

Due from Si:i!i:: of ls-foint ( t~n\c 'Ji 
c\ccrnmlS n:c..:ival;it_ net 

Current poninn nf r,dtt:~ llY,:i,·abk 

f11n:-n!D!)' 

l·l.\TJJ ,\SSETS (N1.1te !J) 

Capital :1ssc::1s 
Less HCCUJl\\lbted !kp1cri;,!1,m 

Un!ER ASSE'! S 

Nn1r;; f\'..::ci\•abk (Nnk )2) 

I u l'AL ,'\SSE rs 

l.'11.:'FERRED OUTF!.()\VS OI· !U•:S\)l)Rf.'ES 

Prepaid cxpens~~ 

LORltHi [W\il·U)l'MH< 1· All I l!OH!TY OF :-.1/\lNF 

[kfcmd ou!tlows 1da1c<l 10 OPU~ (Note 21) 

1.lJ\Hll JTJES 

CllHRPNT LIAFlll.l rll·S 

,,ccounts p,1:•ablt.: 
/H:cru•:d expl'n•:(·s 

')hort-1crm Jebt {N11h.' 1 ~) 

l inc of ct(:dit {Nok 3.) 
C'urffnt p,mion <if lun1'.'(c1m dd1\ 

l ONc;. !"FRM DU:\ I 

Notc:s Pny;ihk (Note J,1) 

Less Curren( Purtinn 

DuetoS1a!cnfMninc(No1e I~) 

r J!'FH Li;\BlLl l'Y tF01e 2 ! ) 

i'CJTAI. !.li\Bll.rt ll:S 

!)1.-ITRKED INFLOWS ()F H!:S<JlJRfTS 
Grant,. authorized nn,J unc.,pi·wkd {N()te iJ) 

Unc;unt-d lease rt:.wnuc (Nok 7) 
DcfcrrcJ inflows 1da1ed !o Ol'Efl (No!c 21) 

Prepaid rent 

TOT/\l. DEFL:RJUJ_1 l!·iFl.OWS ()I,' JU·:SOUKCFS 

~~·Fr POSlllOh 
lnv,:~kd in capilal a~<th, 1:ct o(•,'.lMcd dr:ht 

l'me:,1ri..:td 

J'f}l".-\L NET ?OSI r!f1N 

Sn· nok:s to financial ;;la!~:rnnil:> 

Chcste1· M. Kearney, Cenilict! Publk Accountants 

$ 

J._O:~ l 

8'!.(,!{! 

IC0,000 

Sl l.79f1 
)UJ.J\99 

·l,725 
l,!;C6,90-I 

70,J.,17..?10 

(l_f1,} 1J5,4D_5) 
5,1_,()i\6,878 

1,-lOO 

7,-I07 
8,807 

$ ,HJll,07.7 

)ri, 746 
rno,nco 

1,700.000 

iJ.9,765 

1)80 . .561 

__ -·- tU9,7652, 
850,796 

7.07,000 
1,0~_7,796 

'21,946 

!()0,507 
19,95.l 
(,,·11.1 

'i l.1'11,<i66 
f,_1.'!l2,li-tSl 

2020 

$ J l'i,151 
.Utl/.1 

56.i.895 

355. i7S 

8,9118 

1,251,72:; 

70,,lOJ,2JR 

_i1.)J04,96"/) 
55,098,271 

s 
s 

.100.noo 
_H)(J,0(/(J 

JJ.R9J 

9529 

$ 192,-1)7 
7.'i .. 'i% 

1.680,COO 
175,7-16 

2,123,TP 

1,237,i:19'l 
(175,7-16) 

1,062,146 
207,(l/)(l 

1,269,14(, 

3-1,997 

293,738 
!00,50'/ 

58,.V,I 
9,().1() 

53,903,42·1 

(1.119,}}')1 

$ 52,7SJ,695 
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

STATEMENl'S OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YFARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

OPERATING REVENUES 

State assistance (Note 9) 

Lc.ise revenue 
Water and sewer fees 

Other 

Ol'ERA'J'JNG EXPENSES 

S1;tlaries and benefits 
Depreciation 
Utilities 
Supplies and expense 
Repairs w,d maintenance 

Contracled services 

Legal and audit 

Insurance 
Communications 

Tnwel 
Interest expense and bon<l hank foes 
Marketing 
Unt:ollectable accounts 

LOSS rROM OPERATIONS 

NUN-OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES) 

Federal :ind State assistance for capital projects (Note 9) 

Gain on sale of surplus property 
Loss on asset disposal 
Interest income 
OPJ~ll Expense recovery (Note 21) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION· IJEUINNING OF VEAR 

NET POSITION· END OF YEAR 

Se~ notes to financial statements 
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2021 

$ 665,974 
254,894 

280,035 

82,331 

1,283,234 

432,477 
969,774 

572.466 

65.104 
197,458 

569,757 

6,063 

47,682 
14,015 

1,599 
68,722 

7,547 

2,952,664 

(1,669,430) 

271,792 

57,968 

(6,621) 

2,652 

10,962 

336,753 

(1,332,677) 

52,783,695 

$ 51;151,018 

Chester M. Kearney, Certified Public Accountant, 

21120 

$ 503,306 

272,254 

284,733 

44,257 
1,104,550 

565,737 

972,344 

606,308 

84,961 
202,072 

482,930 
9,591 

46,442 

14,071 

2,600 
62,116 

1,1 IO 

13,814 

3,064,096 

(1,959,546) 

1271621 
1,058 

(6,908) 

5,051 

12,437 

119,259 

(1,820,287) 

54,603,982 

$ 52,783,695 
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l .ORING DEVELOPMENT /\UTHORITY OF MAINE 

STATEMENTS OF C/\SII \i!.OW0 

YEARS l~NDEDJUNE 30, 2021 AND2tl20 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPF.RATJNG /\CTIVIT!ES 

Cash received from customers 
Cash n:ccived rrorn govl':rnmental assistance 
C,1sh received from other soun.Ts 
Ca.sh paid for salairc~ a.nd benefits 
Ca.1h paid for contrnct scrvit"es 
(\1.sh paid for goods ilnd services 
Interest paid 

Net cash used in operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINA NC!~(] ACTIV!Tll'.S 

Net advances on line of credit 
Proceeds from shurHerm Jehl 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
lnkrest received 

Net cash provided by non~copitB1 financing acfrvilles 

CASI-I FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED F!NANCINO ACTIV!TIFS 

Payments for capital acquisitions and construction 
J1flymcnts on long-term dcht 
Payment!'> received on note n;ccivahle 
Sak of property 

Net cash prnvidcd by (used in) captial financing activities 

NET DECREASE IN CASll AND CASH EQUJVAL,ENTS 

Ct\S~l AND CA.SJ I EQlllVALENTS AT HF.Ci!NNINO OF YEr\R 

CASH AND CASH EQUlVALENTS A.TEND OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM lJPERATlONS TO NET 

CASH USED IN OPERA\'\NO ACTIVITIES 

Loss from operations 
Adjuslments to reconcile loss from opcrntiom 

to net cash used in opernting activities 
Depreciation 
OPEB l~xpense Recovery 

Changes in assets and !i.:ibililics 
Operating accounts receivable, net 
Operating fi.Jnds d11e from other governmenls 

Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable 
Prepaid rent 
Accrued expcnse.s 
Unearned lease revenue 

Deferred outllow:; rdaled to (WEB 
OPEB Liability 
Deferrttl int1ows re-lated to Ol'EB 

Net cush provided used in opernting ,1ctivltics 

Sec notes to financial stalemcnts 
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$ 

Nil 

585,396 
569,280 

82,331 
(451,287) 
(569,757) 
(679,573) 

(68,722) 
(532,332) 

20,000 
100,000 
150,000 

2,652 
272,652 

(407,331) 
302.575 
132,966 
28,2!0 

(231,470) 

319,151 

87,681 

( 1,669,430) 

969,774 
10,962 

53,0% 
(96,694) 

4,273 
12,493 

215,595 
(2,629) 

(18,810) 

2,122 
5,524 

__ (18,608) 
1,137,098 

_J (53_2,332) 

Chester M, Kearney, Certified Public Accountants 

2021) 

$ 438,297 
I, 165,399 

44,257 
(570,338) 
(482,930) 
(868,774 J 

(62,116) 
(336,205) 

285,000 

200,000 
5,051 

490,051 

(137,853) 
(267,409) 

2,455 
l,0.58 

(•101,7-19) 

(247,903) 

567,054 

319)51 

{1,959,546) 

972.344 
12,437 

(102,777) 
662,09.l 

1,438 
(12,493) 
123.250 

1,877 
{•1,601) 

(17,790) 
(J,'176) 

(47,773) 
38,812 

1,623,341 

$ (336,205) 
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LORING UEVELOPN!l<:NT i\ll IIIO[U fY OF !Vli\lNF 

NOTES TO l'IN1\NCJ!\LSL\TEMFNTS 

(I) IIISTORY OF TIii' ORGANIZATION 

On July 12, 19'11, the President uf the lluited States accepted !he rce<J11111wndation of the 
Dase Closure and Realignment Commission tv close Loring Air Force Hase (Loring) located 
in the Town of Limestone, Maine, T'own or C:1swell, Maine., and the City of Caribou, :\faine, 
as well HS nine off-,:dtc; locations used for housing, communicatio11c; and water dicnribution_ 
The effective Jak of closure was Septcrnber 30. 1994. The Loring has-i: prop.::ny, which 
exclude::; any off<dte locations, consists of upprllXimately 8

1 
700 acre::-:. of hmd, 3. l million 

square fee! of existing facility space and an avi,Jtioll complex, which ir1tludc; a 12, I 00 foot 
runway, related :iviniiLm facilities and operating sySk'.ltlS. 

On July 13, 19'!3, the Maine State Legislalur<' enacted Public Law Chapler 17,J, establishing 
the Loring !Jcvcloprnent Authority of Maine (LDA), a public municipal curporation. The 
LDA Is entrusted with investigating the acquisition of the properties 1,.vithill the geographical 
boundaric~ of I .orinf!, and the subsequent redevelopment and management ()f property so 
aL'quired. 

On April 4, \ l)97. the Unitc:d States Air Fon.'.l: tran~rerred approximately ·1,'/00 :1crcs of land, 
associated facililic':>i infrastrucnin.: and persn1rnl prupcrly to the LD;\ \'ia the exc-c:ution of 
Economii; Development Conveyanec (Fl)('} and I ,ease in 1:urthernncc of Conveyance 
documents. This l•'.I )(' document, which is a mechanism used by the h.~dera! government to 
lransfer former rnili1ary installations to locnl rcusli authorities for job c.1enl'i011 and economic 
development purposes, transferred control of lhe Loring property to the 1,l)A thr0t1gh a no­
cost~ 55-yeur k:ase, 1,,vith cornmitmcnts lh_1r11 the Air Force to transfer titk to the property 
upon receiving. 1_:nvironmental clearance from lhc Environmental Protection Agency. The 
conveyance docu111c11b also include a provision that pruvided the I ,DA \vlth an average of 
$2.7 million annually throu_gh Septemhcr JO, 200-1 to fond its muniL·lpa! type functions 
including) but not limited to, fire and emergency :-;i.::rvi<.:es, police protection, water and v.,:::iste 
water systems, as well as protection and maintt.'nance of buildings, gr.:1unds and roadways. 
This fonding expired September 30, 2004. The lease given to lhc I.Di\ in 1997 was 
superseded in 2001 with a Quit Chim tked co11VL~ying 2,805 nf the originnl 3,700 acres in 
foe title and in '.?004 when the remainder of the property was cnnvcoycd hy deed. The LDA 
also acquired n I 8S mile pipeline in 2005 and a I 42,000 squn,·c-foot huildillg used by the 
Defense Finance and Accounting Service, subject to a leaseback arrnngl'm..:n1. 

Consistent with the LD,Vs enahling legislation, us amended, the Bnnrd of Trustees i.s 
compristd of thirfrl'll ( 13) voting members, each nf whom arc nominated by the Covernor qf 
the State of Maine nnd confirmed by th(~ Maine Senate. Of t"lw tbinet:11 ( U), one is H 

commissium:r of ,1 dcpartrnent of sl.ak gnvcrnn1c11t, designated by the (iovernor to serve on 
the LDA Board. No less than seven of lhc Board of Trustees must be rcsid1..:nts. l)f Aroostook 
County and be norninated by one of tl1c prinrnry impacted communities, as defined in the 
enabling legis!ntion. 111 addition, no h:;sH lhmi four of the Hoard of Trustees must live outside 
of Aroostook County. ·rhe enabling legislation also imposes tern, limits on the 'Trustees of 
two consecutive fonr-year tenns. The Hoard of Trustees have i:.lt:-:h'.d a Chair, Vice-Chair, 
Se(.;retary and Treasurer tu serve terms of unc year. The fiscal year for the I ,DA runs from 
July l through Junl.' JO. The financi;1! inforniation of the I JJA is rL'J)Ortl·d :-'ts a cumpot1ent 
unit as p:1rt nf the financial ,;tatements ur the State or t--.-1aine. 

Chester M. Kearney. Cercilicd Public Accountants 
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd.) 

(2) SUMMARY OF S!GN!FlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

13a_:;.i_s of gresentation 

The LDA prepares its financial statements 011 the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrnal basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and rneasurahlc and 
expenses are re-cognizcd when incur.red ond measurable. 

The LDA is comprised of business-type activities only. As prescribed by Section Sp20 of 
GASB's Coditication of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards., 
Special Purpose Governments, only the financial statements required for enterprise funds arc 

presented. 

ivleasurcmcnt focus 

Proprietary funds are accounted fi.)r on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds arc included on the 
Statements of Net Position. The Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net 
Position presents the increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net total assets. 
The Statements of Cash Flows provides infomialion about how the Authority finances and 
meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. 

Use ofe_stim[ltes 

tvlanagement uses estimates and assumption~ in preparing financial statements. Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the repor1ed amounts of assets and liabilities1 the disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Budgetary infonnation 

GASl3 #34 requires that budgetary comparison schedules be presented only for the general 
fund and each major specia I revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The 
LDA currently does not legally adopt an annual budget and therefore has not presented one 
in these financial statements. 

Cashand cash~ equivalents 

The LDA has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits 
and cash with fiscal agents. Cunently, the LDA treats all their cash as a cash equivalent 
because they can deposit or withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

Tiw LDA 's proprietary funds distinguish between operating and non-operating revenues and 
expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the LDA consist of federal and state 
assistance for non-capital transactions as well as revenue Jerive<l from rental activities and 
the costs of providing rental property, including depreciation and excluding interest costs. 
All other revenues and expenses are reported as non··operating. 

-8-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd.) 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGN!FlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd.) 

Defer~d Outflgws of Resourc_es 
The LDA reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of 
resources in a separate section of its statement of net position. Deferred outflows of 
resources as of Jnne 30, 2021 consist of prepaid utility expenses and items relating to other 
post-employment benefits. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
T'hc LDA reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement clement reflects an increase in net assets that applies to future periods. The LDA 
will nol recognize the related revenues until a foture event occurs. The LOA 's dcforrcd 
inflows of resources are detailed in Note #7 and Note #9. 

New Acco[!nting Pojiclfll 

The Authority has adopted the prov1s10ns of Statement No. 88 of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Accounting Board - Certain Disclosures Related to 
Debt, Including Direct 13mTOwings and Direct Placements. GASB 88 expands required 
disclosure for long-term debt and other long-tertn obligations. Adoption of this standard 
does not impact previously issued financial statements. 

(3) CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 

Deposits with financial institutions are subject to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk 
is the risk that in lhe event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be returned to 
it. The Authority's investment policy is to invest in regional banks and federal securities and 
to insure the funds to as great a degree as possible. The Authority's checking deposits at 
year-end were covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or 
collateralized by U.S. Governmental Agency securities held in the Authority's name. 

The Authority's cash balances in the financial statements arc $87,681 and $3 I 9,151 as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

The Authority's cash is categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Authority at year-end. These categories arc defined as follows: 

Category# I - lnsured or collatcralizcd with securities held by the Authority or by its 
agency iu the Authority's name, 

Category #2 ··- Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's 
trust J,,partmcnt or agent in the Authority's name. 

Category #3 - Uncollateralized, which includes any bank balance that is collaternlized 
with securities hel<l by the pledging financial institution or by its trust 
department or agent but not in the Authority's name. 

-9-

Chester M. Kearney, Certified Public Accountants 
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTilORITY OF MAINE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM.ENTS (cont'd.) 

(3) CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS (cont'd.) 

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 the Authority's entire cash and temporary investment balances 
are classified as Category J. 

(4) COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Authority employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. Upon 
tcn11ination, an employee is paid the full amount of accumulated vacation days not taken. 
Sick leave is not. payable upon tcm1ination. 

The Authority's financial liability for accrued vacations at June 30, 2021 and 2020 ts 

$23,951 and $21,192, respectively. 

(5) PENSION PLAN 

The Authority has instituted a Model Simplified Employee Pension Plan for all eligible 
Authority employees in accordance with Section 408(K) of the Internal Revenue. Code. All 
Authority contributions to the employee's individual retirement account are 100% vested to 
the employee on the date of the contribution. Employee contributions to the plan are 
discretionary, subject to lnternal Revenue Code limitalions. Employer contributions to the 
plan, at 5% of regular gross wages, totaled $17,017 and $21,580 for the years ended June 30, 

2021 and 2020. 

(6) RENTAL OF FACILITJES 

The Authority has leased land and buildings at Loring to various third parties under non­
cancellable operating leases requiring fixed payments through 2026. The leases provide for 
varying tenns and conditions. 

As of June 30, 202 t, the future minimum lease payments for the next 5 years are as follows: 

fiscal year ending June 30: 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

(7) DF-FERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Amount 

546,253 
78,069 
55,242 
49,006 
49 430 

$]18,()00 

The Authority received advances of rent and other receipts, which have been characterized as 
deferred inflows in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. 

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 the amount included as deferred inflows was $100,507. The 
balance as of June 30, 2021 consisted of a$ I 00,000 partial payment of a fee for an ex.elusive 
negotiation period received from CSJ Green Eco-Energy development company, a $500 due 
diligence fee with Synergen Solar and the remaining $7 is an advance on a property 
insurance claim. These amounts are expected to be recognized as revenue in 2022. 

-10-

Chester M. Kearney, Certified Public Accountants 



P 74

l.ORlNG DEVELOPMEN I' Al/TllORITY OF MAIN!' 

NOTES TO FINANC'l•\I S 1/\TFMENTS (cont'J.J 

(7) DEFERRED INl'LOWS OF RESOIJRCES (cunt\!.) 

The Authority records a deferred inflow of resources related to UPEB obligations; this 
amount is fu11hcr detailed in Note 2L 

(8) LINE OF CREDIT /IND SHORT-TERM f)f'J1T 

The Authority has a variable rate operating lint. of ercdit with Machias Saving.s Bank with 
interest payable at 70% of ·'\\/all Str12d Prim('.", currently 2.275%, with a 111aximum limit of 
$1,500,000. On March 23, 2020 the limit of the line of credit was extended to $1,700.000 
for a 2-month period. automatically reverting to $1,500,000 on July ] I, 207.0. As of June JO, 
2021, the line of credit balance was $1,700.000, leaving $0 available for use and was not in 
compliance, as it is over-extended by $200,000, The line is secured hy the Authority's 
accounts and notes receivable and other general in1a11gibles but could be subject to additional 
collateral pending negotiations with the bank to bring it into compliance. 

On March 12, 202 I the Authority wa., advanced S 100,000 lrom Northern Maine 
Development Commission lo be used as \Vurking capital. The hafoncr.:: was due in full on or 
before Seplcmher 12, 2021 including inti..:n.=st accrued at 4% per annum. On September 23) 
202 l the parties sigrJL•d a modiiicatiou agrct'ment \vhich extended thr.:: m;1turity date to tvfarch 
15, 2022. 

(9) PUBLIC SECTOR Fl INDING 

The LDA is currently f'undc<l through the following public sources: 

(A) State of Maine: 

Tax Increment Financing · On July \ I 996, the State Legishll1m: cnackd LD 1741 
establishing the Loring Job Increment 1:i11ancing Fund (Fund). The Fund, \vhich has a 
tcnn of thirty years, was created to establish a supplemental source of funding to 
subsidizt.: future municipal service co.sis. This Fund will receive :-,late income tax 
withholding revenues which can be attributed to incr~rncntal johs created at Loring and 
will be based upon 50% of the State income tax withholding from these incremental 
jobs. Stak cnutributions to the Fund will he made on an annual ha.sis nnd are paynblc by 
July 31 ,1f each year. The LOA has realized revenues of $51 S,97,t 1111d $503,306 for the 
years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 .. respectively. 

Department ,,r Trnnspo1tation (DOT) n,c state of Maine DDT aw:mlcd the Authority 
a grant of $1,000,000 for airport locilily renovations. $0 was spent in the year enJed 
June 30, 2021 and 2020. $7,825 of the habncc was unexpended as of June ]0, 2021 and 
is reclwdcd as grants authorized and uncxpcrHkd. 

(B) The United Stales Department of Ueknse fu 2009 the United States Air Force Real 
Property 1\gency made payment or$ I ,500,000 to the Authority under nn agreement 
relating to the Air Force's obligation to provide an allcrnativc sourct: of supply for 
Loring's drinking water. ln 2015, upon recognizing that the i11ilial funding was 
insufikknt to complek the projcl't and c:umply witb the Safe Drinking \Valer Act an 
additiunal $100,000 was approved and :idvanccd. ror the year ended June 30, 2021 the 
Authority l:xp~nded $27 l ,7t>2 of the~c: fonds 011 !he water systcrn \vhik: t 14,121 remains 
to be spent and is recorded as grants aulhorizcd and unexpended. 

- I I -
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I ()JUNG IJl'VELOPMENT 1\lJTllORITY OF MAINE 

NOTJcs TO FlNANCl/\1, STATFMENTS (cont'd) 

(10) CONC'FNTRATl(JN llF RISK 

Federal and State 1'1mdi11g 

The LDA rcccivc-d approximately 521ro 1-1f its npcrnting revenue from state runding for the 
y'ear ended June- 10. 202 l. The ability t.o continue its operations is dcpcndcnl on continued 

fund in~. 

Account:- rcci::ivab!e 

For the yr:ar ended June 30, 2021. :ipproxirnc\lely 47% of the Authority's accounts rt!ceivable 
was dt1c from 1 c11stomcr. $455,635 (I no•,,:,) of this amount has been reserved as a dot1btf't1l 
account. 

(11) ALLOWAN( 'I•, !'()J{ DOUBTFUL ACCOllN rs 

Accounts n.>-1..'.(ivablc arc shown on the Slat~mt:nts of Net Position net t)f lhe allowance for 
doubtful accnunts. The allowance for dnuhtrul acl'ounts was $1t.55,6J5 ror !he years end~d 
June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

(12) NOTES RECl:IVAlll.l•: 

British Cycle Supply Company 

On July 22, 20 I 'i the Authority sold a building to the British Cycle Snpply Company and 
received a promissory rwte in the amount of $66,'100. The note i!'i payable tu the Authority in 
monthly installrnl~lll'i. nf$429 including inlcrt:st ;1t 4.75(1/o through July 2<D5 the original note 
contained a final balloon payment in the an101rnt of $55,595 dne July 21120 which the 
borrower was unable to pay sc the pmiiei~ h:i.ve agreed t() extend the note term. The note is 
secured hy the building. The note balance as of Jnnc 30, 2021 and 207.0 is $52,800 and 
$55J75 rc,JJc'clivdy. 

Pcnoh.stof Natural Ga.11 

On September 2,·1, 2010. pursuant to an amendment a sale/lease agreement with Loring Bio­
energy, LLC (l,l\l',). I.DA transferred assets. including the former heat plant building and 
real est;.ifc, to and kw,ed a pipeline e:,,,:tcnding. from Loring to Scarspurt. Maine in exchange 
for a 0% inlcresl 1101e in the amount or ~J.000,000. The note is payable in IO annual 
installment,; nr $.100,000 with the first i11stallme11t due and payable withi11 30 days after the 
buyer commences ''substantial commercial :1c1ivily' 1 or June 30 1 20IJ, \Vhichcver comes 
first. 

fn June ?:O I?, I .BF\; seemed creditor put the property, including the lease rights for the 
pipeline, np Cur bid at auction wi1h I'enohscol Natural Gas {PN< i) being the successful 
bidder. PN(i co111pldt.~d the acquisition \Jr the ft1rcc.loscd rights rrom LBE's lender, and 
negotiated no ''Assumption Agreelllcnt" wi(h the I .DA. The t\ssumptio11 Agreement, signed 
June 11, 20U, cnntains PN(.?s cnmmitmcn! to hnnor al! future ohligatiuns under the LRE 
agreemt"n1s, and al.so contains LDJ\ 's acknnw!cdg_cment that PN<..i had cured existing LBE 
defaults and that P"\!G qu,;:1lifies n~ ll ''pcrrni1tcd transferee·· as defined in the LBE 
documents, 

As of June JO, 2021 lhc outstanding balance due on the agreement is $300,000. 
-12-
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LORIN(i DEVELOPivffN I Al!TI IOR!TY OF MAINL 

NO'ITS TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd.) 

(IJ) CAPITAL ASSl'TS 

With the exception or the assets acquired from the UnitcJ States Air h>rcc, (see below) all 
capital assets arc slated at cost (or cstimalcd historical cost) and updated lt>r additions and 
retirements during the year. Assets aequirL·J with grants are also slated at cost. The 
Authority maintains a capitalization thn.:shold ,1f $5,000. Improvcnwnts are cnpitalizeJ; the 
cost of normal maintenance and n:rairs that do not add value to the asset or materially 
extend as.set lives arc not capitalized. Assets such as land and some land improvements .ire 
considered inexhaustible and arc not being derre1,,:iak<l. Capita! asscl.s. not in use are a!so not 
being deprcciateJ. 

Capital assets arc depreciated using tlie slrnight-fint method over the f<1llowing useful lives: 

De?criru.irm 

Buildings anJ improvements 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Estimated lives 

15-50 years 
3-5 years 
3-5 ye~irs 

On June 30, 2017 the Authority adjusted the values of buildings that were contributed by the 
United States Air Fon;c to reflect revised cstinwtc:-. of the buildings' po(elllial l.'ulurc use and 
value to the 1\uthorily. The adjustment reduced the original value b_y $7,/482,924. The total 
accumulated depreciation on these buildings was $2,234,222 resulting in a rl!cognized write 
down in the amuunl of$5,248,702. In June 2019 an additional $37.208 was written off 

Capital asset activity for the year ended .lune 30, 2021 was as follows: 

CAPITAi -.t~SSE'(S,\CQIJ!RFIJ BYLDA (Il!STQRICAI COST) 

Capital Asscot.s 
Land 
Equipment nnd improvements 

Total at hislorical cnst 

l,css Accumu.lmcd llepreeigtjon 
Equipment and improvements 

Total Accumulat~d Depreciation 

Capital assets at historical cost, net 

Beginning 
nalancc Additions Retirements 

I 0,(100 
11,87'!,l6I 
11,889,161 

3,86 JJ,2i; 
1,861,625 

8,0c7,5J6 

-LI-

1_65.83) 
465,837 

(465,837) 

47,)4.2 
,-!7,549 

.18,820 
18,82() 

(8,729) 

Chester M, Kearney, Cc11ilied Public Accountants 

Ending 
Balance 

10,000 
!LaJ1,612 
ll 84Uil2 

4,288.642 
4 283,M2 

7;>52,90/D 



P 77

IOIUN(i DEVELOPMl'NT AliTIIORITY OF lv!AINE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAi. ST1Hl·MLNTS (conrd.) 

( l.l) CAPITAL ASS!ff., (cnnt'd.) 

CAPITAL 1\SSETS AC<)IJIRH) FJl,QM U.S. AIR l•URt'I'. 

lkginning 
Balance Additions Rdircmenls 

~~pjt_;il ,Assets 
Lmd i 0,457.199 22.(,0() 

Buildings 
In use •l,811 l,8,I, 56,806 

l,case<l 1\l8'.i,8'H 
Not in use 1,666,025 

21,(,55,766 56,&Q() 

Equipment 
ln use 116.'i(Hl 3,1 ,000 

Not in use 89Jl00 
2:05,500 34,000 

Spccinl U'>c structures. 
Wak.r planl anrl distribution \080,1).11 

Other facilities and improvements 
Aviation facilities 

Rumvays 9/172,226 
Structures (,. I 05,861 

.L'ucl pipeline 2,000,000 
17,:,n,0fi? 

Roadways and accessories 1,517.496 

Capital assets li'rnn l J.S. Air Force 'i8,'.i l~.OTI 111/l()f, 

14 
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Ending 
Balance 

10.434.599 

4,747,<rn 
I 5, l 85,894 

1.666,o;,,s 
1Li2.8. 9 _;i_6 

102,500 
_89.00Q 
J 9 UC)Q 

i.Q~(),033 

9,472,226 
6.105,861 
2,000.000 

17.578,087 

;i,il 7,49(, 

58.400,t'iII 
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LORJNG DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd.) 

( I J) CAPITAL ASSETS (cont'd.) 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Retirements 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Buildings 
In use 2,307,601 94,602 6,516 
Leased 6,611,619 307 734 

--···· 
8.,919,220 402,.J:l() 6.516 

Equipment 
In use !)/,_,,5_()_0 J4,000 

Special use structures 
Water plant and distribution ;1-387,622 101,60 I 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 11..4.41.34 2 503,237 40,5 l 6 

Capital assets acquired from U.S. 
Air Force, net .11JW),'ZJ5 (503,937.) UZ.~901 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets 70,403,238 160,955 
Less Accumulated Depreciation U2J.Q'L 96 2l (969,774) 79 336 

55,0.98,271 (969,lli) (Jl.l ,fi L2) 

Ending 
Balance 

2,395,687 
6,919,35]_ 
2,J_l'i,040 

102,S0Q 

2,489,223 

l l,906, 763 

J!S,193,9()~ 

70,242,283 
(16,192,405) 

5.1,Mfi,87 8 

On April 4, 1997 the Authority received 3,700 acres of land, associated facilities, and 
personal property from the United States Air Force via a 55-year no cost lease. In 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles all assets associated with this 
lease were capitalized at estimated fair market value. The Authority has since obtained this 
property in fee title. 

During fiscal year 2005 the United States Air Force transferred to the Authority additional 
property consisting of a fuel pipeline and associated fights of way extending from Searsport, 
Maine to Limestone, Maine, The pipeline was not in service as of June 30, 2010 and the 
pipeline and associated easement rights were leased during the year ended June 30, 20 l I, 

During fiscal year 2005 the United States Air Force transferred title to a building currently 
occupied by federal employees to the Authority. Transfer of the deed for this property was 
contingent upon the Authority's promise to lease the property back to the United Slates at no 
cost. The 50-ycar lease may be renewed, extended, or terminated by the United States at its 
option but the Authority is given no option to decline an extension or renewal or to terminate 
the lease, The United States Uovemmcnt may use this property for any government purpose 
and is not required to pay any taxes, assessments or similar charges. However, the United 
States Government is responsible for all costs and liabilities associated with the property as 
if it were the owner. Accordingly, this property is not included as a capital asset on these 
financial statements. 

Management feels that the value of these assets could fluctuate significantly in the event that 
the operational status of the Authority change.s. 

-15-
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I URIN(, DEVELOPMENT Al iTllORITY OF MAINF 

NO!l'S TO FIJ\iA;\iCl/\1. SIAl'Uv1ENTS (cont'd.) 

(l•I) UlNG-TERM IJl·:J\T 

As of June JO long-term debt consisted of: 

Note payable to Norihern ivtainc lkvclopment 
Commission, payable in monlhly inst:ill111c:nts of $1,506 
including in1t.:n.::s:I at J~lo per annum, rn:1turcs i\fay 2023~ 
secured by assds nrthe ;\uthorit-y. 

Note payahk to Northern ivlaitH~ Dcvelorment 
Commission, payable in monthly inst:1llrnctlts or S3,857 
including i11krc:st at 6(% pfr annum, malun_~s June 2025~ 
securc<l by assets of1hc Authority. 

Note payable In USDA Rural Devclnpmenl, payable in 
annual in"1al!mcn1s of $14.860 including inll'rcst at 3.25%, 
per nnmim: mature:; ,.\11gust 205-0: SL'curcd by assets of1he 

Authority 

Note payable lo US Small Business Administration, 
obtained through lhc EIDL program, payable in monthly 
installmenls of $(>4] including interest al. 2.751~1i per annum 
beginning January 2022, matures December 2050; 
unsecured 

Note payable to Machias Savings Hank, pnynble in 
m.onthly insta!ltncnts of $12,587 ini:lwling interest at 
3.029i'.1l1 per 1rnrn111i_ rna1urcs September 2020: secured by 
assets of the Aulhnrity 

Rond pay,1bk lo !he Maine tvlunicipal !fond !lank, payable 
in scmi-1rnn11al inslalhncnls of $10,156 plus i11lcresl at 1% 
per annum, matures r:ebruary 2046. 

Note rayahk to Katahdin Trust Comp,my, payable in 
monthly installrrn:.nts of $3:615 including inll're:;t at 5.5% 
per annum .. malUJ-es October :2020: sccun:d by as~e!s of the 
Auth,xity. 

Note payable to Katahdin Trust Company, payable in 
monthly installments of $2,488 including i11lercst at 6.5% 
per annum, nwlurcs l)cc:c.mber 2026; secured hy real estate. 

Bond payable 10 the Maine Municipal Bond !lank, payable 
in scmi-ann11al installments ofSl 1)68 plus bond hank fees 
of $569 per ins:.;t;1llmcnL mature::. October 1029. Interest 
rate is 0'%. 

Less current p\)I1inn 

· I 6-

2021 

l2.219 

16'1J'i() 

150,000 

135,779 

215,')92 
'!80,5!, I 

( 129,H,5) 
SS0,796 
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2();20 

49,037 

200,000 

287.561 

50,045 

264,046 

14,248 

l 56,963 

215,921 
1,237,892 

Ll.75,J<lfl 
LQ62J.3ii 
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LORIN<i DEVELOl'Ml'NT AUTIIOIUTY OF MAINE 

NOi'!•:~ TO FINANCIAi. STATEMl'.NTS (cont'd.) 

(14) LONG-TERM DEBT (cont'd.) 

Future long~term debt ohligations are as rollows for the year ended June JO, 2020: 

PRINCI.J' Al. INJJ'({EST T(l(','\.L 
6/30/2022 129,765 26,047 155,812 
6/30/2023 109,826 24,107 UJ,933 
6/30/2024 98.697 2ll, 164 I I 8.861 
6/30/2025 l 02/109 16,219 118.628 
6/30/2026 59,122 IJ,JJ() 72,461 
2027-J l 155,207 Sl,325 208,532 
2032-36 66,007 •16.844 112,851 
2037-41 76,820 l 6,03 I 112,851 
2042-46 89,415 21/13/i 112,851 
2047-5 l _JIJ__,29l 8J,76 101,969 

Tolal 98(t56l 268,188 l,248,lli 

Long-term debt activity i<:>r the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Beginning_ Ending 
13alan_c~ Advances f{!Y_tnenu Balance 

Long-Term Dehl 

N,,te payable --NM I >C 49,037 16,818 32,219 

Note payable-· NMDC 200,000 35,650 164,350 

Note paynble-USIJ,\ 287,561 5,340 282,221 

Note payable -- lJS SBA () 150,000 150,000 

Note payable Machias 
Savings Bank 50.()45 50,t},; 5 0 

Bond payable - MMllB 264,(141, 264,046 0 

Note payable-Katahdin 
Trnst Company 14,248 14,248 0 

Note payable-Katahdin 
l'rn,.;t Company 156,961 21,184 135,779 

Bond payable -- MMllB JJ'.i,992 215 992 

1,23_].sn !S(lJ)_00 4.0LJ3 l 980561 

Othl~r I,ong-Tcrm ()hligations 

OPEB liabilities 34,997 5.,ld'i24 40 •. 521 
-17 
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LORIN<, lll'VF.LOl'MFNT ;\liTHORI l'Y OF M1\INF 

NOTFS TO FlNi\NCJAJ. STATEMENTS (cont'd.) 

(15) !)Ill' TO STAT!•: OF lvli\lN!' 

On Janunry 2, 20 l 9 !hL' Authority rnkn.:d into an agreement with the j\,foinc Jv1ilitary 
Authority (;vtiv1;\) by \Vhich !he Authority rcccivc-t..l equipment valued at $207,000. Under 
the knns of the agn."L'.rntmt the Authnrity can not sc-11 or 1ransfcr ownership or the assets for n 
period of ten (JO) y1:ars. During the lrn (JO) year period the Authority is uhligated to pay 
2,:-,rlti nf any l~asc revenue received for the 11se of the 1,.~<piipmcnt. As of June :w, 2021 Hie 
L'q11ipI11cnt is not leased and no payments Pll the note arl' anticipnted in the current term. 

(16) SI illSl•:l)l:ENT l'VFN IS 

i\:l:111agemcnt has cvah1,1tcd subsequent cvcn1s occurring lhrough September 28, 2021, the 
date the financinl Ktalcinenls were ,1vailablc ln be issued. 

(17) FAIi( VALUE OF FIN1\N('IAL INSTRl!Ml'.NTS 

The 1\u[hority has a tlli!llber of financial instruments, none of which an: held for tnicling 
purposes. The /\uthtirily categori.o.:s its foir value- n1easurements within the fair value 
hii:rnrchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on 
the valuation inp11ts used lo measure lhi: fair value of the asset. Level l inpuls are quoted 
price..-. in active markc-ts for idcnlica! asSl'1s; Level 2 inpuls rirc signiricant nlher observable 
inp11ts: Level 3 inputs arc ;;ignificant unnhs~:rvable inputs. 

The Authority estim~ltcs 1hat the fair value of all financial instruments at June '30, 2021, does 
1wt differ materially from the aggregate earrying values o!' it.s financial instruments recorded 
in t.hc accompanying Statement of Nd Posilion. The cstimalcd fair value amount~ have been 
dde1rnincd by the Authority using availahk market information and appropriate valuation 
inc:thodologies. Considcrahk judgment is necessarily requirer! in interpreting market data to 
develop the estimates of fair vali1e, an<l, accordingly, the estimates are not necessarily 
indicative ufthc amounts !hat the /\11thnri!y cm1ld rc,iliLL' in a current market exchange. 

(18) TAXG, 

As n gov12rnmen!;1I entity, the Authority is not subject to Federal and State income 1axcs, 
accordingly, it is not mxcs-;,1ry to consider the effects of :my uncertain tax r11,;i1inns. 

I he ;\uthority is suhjcct to Fcdunl and State payroll t3x and is required to file the 
.1pprnprinte tax return~. Management lx:licv~~s that all requir~<l rctunis have he-en properly 
lilcd as of June 30. 202 L No examinations have been conducted by !he Federal or State 
taxing ,rnthoritics nnJ no corrc:sponJcncc has been received from these authorities. 

-18-
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LORING DEVl'LOP1\\FN J Al illlll!U IY OF MA!NI· 

NOTES TO l·INI\NCIAI. ST!\11 1.Ml-:NTS (cont'd.) 

(19) .'.illMMARYOFACTIVITIES 

Expense~·--

( icncr.JI operntion~; (2,941,702) 

Gt;!lt'.f<.11 r'l'VCJ\UC.<;: 

Slate appropriations 

( ·:barges for 
Services 

534, 9')9 

I .oririg J(ih l1icrcnu::11IHI l•i11aricing 
Irni...:,csl income 
Sale or ;,11rplus prnpUi) 
nthcr in(ome 

Total gl'ncral revenues 

Chnngl' iu net position 

Nid posit.ion ~ July 1, 20?0 

!'1d position -- June JO, )02 t 

( lper:ding 
lirant0 and 

(\mtrilmtions 

(20) SUMMARY OF NON C'I\Sll JNVESTIN(i M-ID FINANCIN(i ACTIVITIES 

No1H::<1sh investing :rnd !inandng activities arc a'> follow:;· 

None 

-19· 
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( ~apital 
lirnnts aod 

( 'n11trit111tions 

271,792 

Tulal 

1,0,000 
.\15,974 

1,65'.2 

'dJ47 
8LJJl 

(l,Hl,677) 

52,783.MiS 

5 l,'151_,(ll 8 

:020 
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I< llUi/Ci DEVEUll'MEN I Al :11 IORlTY OF M1\INL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAi. STAITMENTS (cunt'd.) 

(21) OPE!l Olli.I(;;\ ll<JNS 

P l_a n _ Dq;cr_i ption 

The Authurity pnwides health insmam.:c to its employees through M:1i11c Municipal 
Employees l fca!th Trnsl (ivl'rv1EH 1} The /\11lhnrily does nnt prnvitk: postcmployrnent or 
postrdircmcnt hi.::ilthci1rc bcnefils hut is :>\lhjct:I to an in1plicit hcnerit !"or iLs members in 
MMEHl. 

The impad of experience gains and illsses and .-issumption changes on !.lie Total OPEB 
Liability (TOI.) ;ire recognized in the OPJ~B expense over the avc-rnw: ex:pcck·.d remaining 
service life nr all active and inactive rne111hcrs of the plan. As or till'. beginning of the 
measurement pl•rind 1his average \va:-; 11 year_"_ 

The table hclnw :-.u11rn1;irizes the cunenl balances of deferred outflows of n:•:;ources and 
deferred !nflo1.Ys nfrcsourccs alnng \Viti! 1he rccu~nition over the next 5 )t-<ffS. and thereafter: 

Difference bctwl'cn expected and actual i~xrcrien(.'.c 
Payments subsequent hJ the measurement dak 
Differenct.· between projected and actual earnings on OPFB 
plan invcstmL~n!s 
Changi;s of ass ump! iuns 

Deferred 
Outflows or 
Bs,s_Qu_rccs 

220 

1.187 
'/ ,407 

Deferred 
lnllows of 
J{.csuurccs 

$ 38,28 l 

_ _1&]2 

$3~_5.l 

Amounts reported as del.Cncd out!lmN.s and ddi!rrcd inflows oC n~:)mnu,-:,s will be 
recognized as OPEB expense as follows: 

Y car ended June 30: 
2022 
}I))] 

;,02,1 
202.S 
21J26 

Thcn:af'tcr 

(9,325) 
(7,873) 
(7,873) 
(7.872) 

3'J7 
0 

As of January I, 2021, the plan membership data is comprised of 4 active members with only 
an impl.icit bcnt.:fiL 

-20 
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fURIN(i DLVFLOPMENT ;\llTIIORITY OF /\L\l~JI 

NOTES TO FfNANCL\I. SIA ITMFNTS (cont'd.) 

(21.l OPEB OBLIGATION:, (c,,nt'd.) 

.Nkasurement Date: 
Discount Rak: 

Trend Asst11n1ltio1b: 

Administr:itivc awl Claims 

January I, 20? I 
2, 123/<1 per nnnum for year-end 2020/J I reporting 
2.74%, perarn11m1 fru year-end 20t9/20 n:porling 
Pre-!Vkdit::m .. : M1._·dical lnirial trend of 8.~'>(1 ,1pplied in F'{E 
20 l K grading over ! 4 !'~ars to 4~10 per annurn 
Pre--}.-1cdican: Drug Initial trend of '}.61Vi1 applied m FYE 
2018 grading over ] ,:I years to 4%1 per anrum1 
Medicarc Medical Initial trend nr ,J.IJ:l% upplied m FYE 
2018 gradi11g 1)vcr 14 years to 4% per an1turn 
Medicare llrug l11itial trend of 9.6'},, applied 111 FYE 2018 
grading over 14 years tn 4% p0r annum 

Expense: 3%, pc·r annum 

Future _Ph-1JLChanges 

It is assumed tlwt lhl' current plan and cosLs!wring structure rtmains in plai..::c fi)r nil future 
years. 

[)emogm:pJ1k __ Ass1_1Tl_\p{iQU:'i 

Retiree conti11uatim1: 

Rate of 111ortal ity: 

Marriage assumptiori.s: 
A.ssumt'.d rate uf retirement: 

Salary increac)c.s: 
Changes in nc;su111plions: 

Retiret·s who an: current MeJicare pai1icipants: 100% 
Retirees \Vhn an:.: Pn:-M.cdicare, activt:· participant:-.'. 75% 
Spou::;c.;; wl10 an: I1r\.'.-1\ifeJic.1re, active participa1ib: 50~--() 
Based on ](1,1% and !20 % of lhe Rl'-201,J Total Dataset 
Healthy t\rrnuitant Mnrtality fable. respeclivcl), for males and 
females, using th,, Rl'-2014 Total Dataset limployec Mortality 
Table tor ages prim to slait of the Healthy A111111itant Mortality 
Table, both proi<TI fi-0111 the 2006 base raks using RPEC-2015 
model, wi1h an nltirnalc rate of 85!\.{) f·(-,r ages 20-85 grading 
down to nn ultirnate rate of 0% fur age.,; I) 1-120 and 
convergem::r.:: tu till: ullimate rnk in the year 20::'.0. 
A husbFind is ;1s\urrwd tn he 3 years older tlurn hi, wife 
For employees hired prim to Julv I. 20 I •I 
Age 5 5-63 51% 
Age 64-69 211% 
Age 70-+ , I 001% 
For l'lllployce'._l hired Hiler July l_, 2014 
Age 55-58 51!,·0 
Age 59-64 ).011//l 
Age 65~69 2-Sti,;1 
Age 70 i - I ow.•·,, 

2.75'Vi, per year 
Funding mcthnd wa." changed from Prnjccted Unit Credit 
funding lo Hntry J\gi..: Nurm,1l firnding method. 
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f ORIN(j DEVELOl'Ml'.N I /\l iTI IORITY OF MJ\INI:. 

NflTES TO FINAM 'IAI. SIAlEMENTS (cm1t"d.) 

(21) OPEil Olli.I< ,J\TIONS (cont'd) 

)! i5co1mt _ _Ra_t_c 

The discount rate used lo 1111:;asure the OPEH liability was 2.12% hasccl on a measurement 
date of January l, 2021. This rate i.s assumed tn be an index rate for 2.0~ycar, tnx exempt 
general ohligatio11 munleipn! bonds ,1.:ith an average rating of /\A/1\a or higher. for pay 3s 
you go plans. 

The following table show:; how the net OPEil liability (NOL) as of June JO, 2021 would 
change if the disc1Hlllt rate used wa::{ onL'. pen:.cnt,1gc point lower or lir1c percentage point 
higher than the current rate. The current rate is 7 .. L?:1½). 

1 % lk.c.reasc 

1.120,,~ 
S•1<,J1 I 

Current Disc()Ull! Rate 

~~-12% 
S•·tn.5 21 

').12% 

$1 S.368 

A 1 ~lo dec.rc;i_;;c in the healthcare trend rate incrca,1.,cs the NOL by apprnxirnatdy 15.3~-0 while 
3 1 % lncn.·ri:,c- in the healthcare trenJ ra!c tkr.:rc;iscs the TOL by approxirnakly 12. 7%. 

Changes in the healthcare trend affect lhc 1t1L:as11rcmcnt of the TOI,. [ ,owcr healthcare trend 
rates produce a lowrr TOL and higher healthcare !rend rates produce a higher TOL. The 
table below shows !he sensitivity of the TOI, to the healthcare trend rate. 

I {ealthcare J'rcnd Rates I ~!ti l ncreasc 

S15,0 l<J 

A 1% d~crL::.1sc in lhc healthcare trend rate decreases the TOL by ar,prnxinrntdy 13.5% while 
a lo/o increaSL'. in t}h' healthcare trend rate i1h:rcases the TOL by appn1xin1atdy 16.5°/4. 

(22) COVIU-19 

The COVIi )-19 n111hrcak in the United States has caused business disruption through 
111andated and vuluntary closings of rntdtirlc bnsinesscs. The disruplinns have caused 
several pokn1ial tenanl'J lo delay their k·ascs. 1\t this time mtuMgcmcnt cJnnot reasonably 
estirn,1tc the: nVL'.r;1ll llnancial impnct o!'thc pa11dc111lc on Its operations. 

The LDA is \Vorking h1 compensate for the loss of stntc funding. Thu /\uthurity is working 
with the lcgis!allll't.; to rc~.;torc fundinf!,, hoWl'-vc.r, due to COVID-19 disniptinns it is unknown 
if or \vhen 1hc lirnding will be restored, The I Jl/\ is seeking lorms and grnnls that have been 
made av;iil;ihk d11c lo COVID-19. 

Chester J\1. Kearney. Ccr1ilied Public Accountants 
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LOIUNU llFVFLUl'MFNT AllTHOIU'I Y OI MAINL 

NDl'l•:S TO FINANCIAL STATEMFNTS (cont'd.) 

(23) ( '( >NlfNCiENCJFS 

Going_(oncerq 

As indicated in lhe accompanying sla(erncnt of net positioI1, a:-: of Juuc :w, 2021
1 

the 
Authority has Jdieit unrestricted net position totaling $1,7)2,(Yl8. The dclkit amounts to 
more than a year cir npt:rating, rt:venuc_ J'he deficit is principally the rc.c;ul{ of declining 
rCV(;Jlllt':S from the S!,itc of t\fainc and rrorn leasing. Due tn the reductio11s in rc\'enue the 
Autltnrity has relied tin short and long tcrrn financing lo :Ws!ain nperation:-;. 

1'he1->c factors> as well a.s the uncertain ~·-t,nditions that the ;\uthority fac0.s regmding future 
revenues, create an uncertainty abou! tl1c Authorily's ahilily lo c-ontinue as a going co11cem. 
Mnnagement of thL' Authority is d<..'.Vl'lopir1g a plan to reduce its liabilities !hrnugh sales of 
asscls ;ind obtain addl1ioual finnneing to ~t1:>U1in opcraliLHl"i. The ability n!' rlic ,.\ullwrity to 
continue as a going cont:l:nl is dtpc.:11dc11t Oil ndditi\111al cuntrihUTion,,; f'rnrn the Srnte uf' 
Maine and additional lin:111ci11g frtJ!ll dUtside soun.:cs. ThL~ Jlnancial statements do not 
indudt· any adjustrucms that might Ln: nccl'ssary if the Authority is unable lu continue as a 
gu1r1g concern 

The Authority is c1mcntly ncgotiatiug with a privak· developer \.Vho is interested in 
acquiring a suhs1,rn1ia! portion of the ,kv~.::lop3bk: fL:al estate, exdudi11g the aviation 
focilitics, located at the Loring C01nm1.:rct Center. The real 1:::;'.\tatc will be sold in parccb 
ovt:r a number of ye:.ir:; provided that the developer 111cds certain benchrnnrks in each 
preceding year. The i11i1ial parcel would include land and buildings valued at $7 million 
wilh th~ t\uthority rec:eiving a do,vn payment of$3.5 million nnd the remaiuing $J.5 million 
wotild be financed u~'cr a period of l O years. The Authority \Vould use !he initial down 
payment to pay duwn accounts payable, the line of creJit :ind other long-krill d0bts 1,vhilc 
11:-.ing the remaining funds to .strengthtn openitional cas!J thnv. 

(24) COMPONENT UNl'I 

lo Frhruary 2021 the Authority acquired fl I 00% member:·d1ip interest in I ,()rini~ Industries, 
Ll ,<.' upon the <lcath of the l .LC's suk member. The n11.:mht:r's heirs did 0(1t wish to obtain 
thl' I .I.C and disclaim.;d this portion of the estate. fbL" Authori~y recognized Ilic LLC (1.'i n 
valw1hll: asset tu rl'dn·vlopment ettort'i ,ind aL·ccpkd the I J /, to keep it opcratiunal, 

Management has not pres<.mtcd any fina11cial infonnatinn related to Loring l11<.h1stries) LLC 
in ils financial state1110nts for the year cnil:d June 30, 2021. 

-Ll 

Chester M. Kearney. Certified Public /\crnunwnts 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY lNFORMATlON 
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LORING DEVE!.OPMENTAUTIIORITY OF MAINE 

SCIIEDULE OF Clli\NGES IN NET OPED Ll.'\R.IUTY 

FOR lllE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202! 

Total OPEH l,iah!ity 

Service cost (BOY) 

Interest (indmk:<t interest on f:lervicc l'0:11) 

Changes ofbcnefil tem1s 
DiITwence.~ belween cxpec{ed anti actunl expt;riem;c 
Chilflgcs of assum111icms 
Benefit payments, includi11g refunds of member contributions 
:'>Id Cli1111ge in fatal OPED Liability 

'fo!al OPEJJ Li11bility - Btginning 
Tola! OPEB Liability - Ending 

$ 

2021 

2,452 

J,022 

2,382 
()32) 

$ 34 997 

.1.-~'.~!_ 

2020 

$ 1,365 

3,404 
(680) 

(57,421) 
7,802 

(2,24J) 
$ (-17.773) 

$ "2,770 
$ 34,997 

l.ORJNG rn:VELOPMENT AUTI IO!{lTY ()], MAINE 

SCHEDULE OF EMl'I.OYER'S SHARE OF Ol'FB CONTRJOUT!ONS 

FOR Tl IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,202 ! 

2011 
Plan Fiduch1ry Net Positiuu 
Contributions - Employer 332 
Conu!butions. McmbcJ 
Net investment Income 
Benefit paym~nlS, induding refunds of member coniributi◊ns (332) 
Administrative e){pense 
Nt.'I change in plan lidudurf net positio1ts 

Total Fil.ludnry Nel Po.~itiou - Bcgi1rning $ 
Total Fiduciary Ne! l'm,ition - Emling 

$ ---

P!un fidud.ny net position n:,i u percenrngt of the torn! OPEB liability 0% 

Covered employee payroll 251,783 
Net OPEB liability a~ a pen:enttige of covered employee payrol! 

Suppleme11tary .<:cl1edulc :;tarts with one year of iuformntion as of the 1mplcmen!at1on 
ofGASB No. 75, but eventually will buildup to IOyearsofinformation. The 
~chtdulc ubovc show~ chm1ges in TOL und n:lntecl ratios rn(p.iire<l hy GASB N,1. 75. 

See ru.·cornpanying mdcpendenl audi1ori' n>p011 arn.J notr-s lo financial stdtcments, 

·24-

16.1% 

202!) 

l,243 

(2,243) 

$ 
£ 

0%, 

251,783 
13 9% 

Chester M, Kearney, Cenific<l Public Accountants 

$ 

t 

2019 

1574 
3.01 J 

(6,685} 
(2,157) 
{4,257) 

$ 87/J27 
$ _ 82,770 

2019 

2,157 

(2,157) 

I 
_s 

()'!•<, 

402,382 

20.6% 

2018 

$ 2,175 

$ 
$ 

3,819 

(2'1,471) 
12.105 

(907) 

19,306 
81,0).1 

20!8 

907 

(907) 

0% 

402.,382 
21 6% 
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I'll 12 Dyer Slrcd, Presque Isle . M~inc 04769-1 :'>50 Barbur:\ I'. . Mi.:Guire, CPA, CGMA 
207-7(>4-3 I 7 I Fax 207-764-(,J(,2 Tiruolhy P. Poitras. CPA, CGMA 

To the Board of Trns1ues uf the 
Loring Devt:lopmenl Aulhority of Maine 

INDEPENDENT AU111TOl{S' REPORT ON INTl~RNAI. CONTROL ov~m. l•INANl'l/\1. REPORTlNG 
ANL> ON COMPLIANCE /\ND O'J'I 1m MATTERS RASFU ON AN 

AUDIT OF l'INANCTAL STA l'El-v11~NTS PERFOHJv1ED lN ACCOR I >AN CF 
WITH GOVERNMEN I /\l)l)l'J ING STANDAR DS 

We have audi ted. i11 nccurdance with the n11diting ~t:mdards gener,dly accuptt.:d in the United 
States of America a11d rhc standards applicahl1.: Ill financial audits c0n!:1incd in Governnienl 
Audiling Sramlord.1· iss11ed by Lhe Comrtrlllkr liCnl:ral of the U11itcd Status, tile financial 
statements of lhc bus iness- type act·ivities nf lhc I ,c,ring Development Aull1 ,wity of Maine as of 
and for the year c11cled .hull: 30, 2021, and the related notes to the fi nanci,il statements, which 
collectively t.:ornprisc lhe Lori11g Developmcnl t\uthority of Maine's basic fi1rnnci:tl statements, 
:md have issued 1111r rupurL thereon dated Scpk.nihcr 21'. 2021. 

l/llemul Cu11trol Oi•er Fi11(1111.·ial Reportinx 

In planning and pcrl i,rmi11g our audit of the fimin cial statemenL,, we considered Loring 
Development A11thori1_v nr Maine's internal co11irol over financial reporting (i 11tem,tl conlTOI) as a 
hasis for designing the aud it procedures that arc appropriate in the circun1sra11.;cs for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial sl al.erm:nts, hut not for the 1rnrp(lsc of expressing an 
<•rinion on th0 c:fl i.:r;tivcness of Loring Devclnpmc11t Authority or Maine's interna l control. 
Accordingly. we du no! express an opinion nn lhl: l: lfcctivcness of Loring l'lcvclopmcnt Authority 
orrvlainc 's internr1I control. 

A dl.'jiciency in i11remal control exists when 1h.: dcsi!!,n or operation or a cout rol does not alk1\\ 
ma nagement or cmplnyel'S, in the normal t:lllll'Sl: o f performing their ;1~:, ign<"d fun ctions, to 
prevent, or detccl :ind <.:orrect, misstateine11t s on a ti111.::ly basis. A n1111r•riu/ ll't'ol..?1ess is a 
deficiency. or combi11atinn of deficiencies, in intern:tl con1rol, such that tl1ert· is a re:ison:ibk 
possibility that a 111u1crial 111 isstatemenl of !he cnlil y ·s i'inancial slaleml'nts wi II not be prevented, 
or detected and cnrrcdcd on a timel:v basis . A significant deji<:ie11cv is a deficiency, or 
combination of J elic iclll:.ies in internal co111rol ll1al is less severe th,m H 111atrrinl weakness, yet 
im portant enough h> merit atltntion by those cJ1argcd wit h governance. 

Our consideration 01' intcm:.il co ntrol v1as for lhl: limited purpose. described i r1 lhc fi rst paragrnph 
o f tbi s section and was nnl designed to idcrn11'y al l dcliL:iencies rn ink rnal ..:ontrnl that might be 
material weaknc,sc~ ( 11' s1g11ificant deficiem:il::-. c;ivc11 these limitation~, during J lll' audit we d id 
not identify :rny ddic: icncics in internal control that we consider to bc 111:itcrial wi:aknesses. 
However, ma1eri:i l wcakncsscs may exist that have not bcen idcntitied. 

-7.5-
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Compli,mt·e und other mutters 

As part of ohtainin,Q. rc:1~on;1h!e as::suranct: about whether 1 nrir1,f'. Dcvcloprnent Authority of 
fvfai!ll'. 1

:-- rin:rncial sta1emu1ts nre frer nf r11:1!eria[ rniss\{l(e111,:nC \Ve perli:nrJed tc-;ts of it<; 
comrihnce ,,,.,lth certain provi;;ion;; or (a\V';, reJ).ubtion~;. cnnlrncts, and gr;m; ;11!,reemen1s. 

nonuJrnpli:rnce with which l'.1)11!d have a dir1'.C! and material elfrd on the lln,1ncinl stalements. 
Hnwevcr, pnwiding an 11pininn on comp!Lrnci.:; with those p11}visl\.1n.s was nDt an uhjt:ctive of 011r 
alldit, :rnd al~c.ordingly, Wl', c..lo not exprc'.'s:; such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
inst:mce;; n!' noncon:p!i:u1cc or other matlcrs llrnt me required lo be reported U!l(icr Government 
A 1!ditin1; ,\rundards 

P11rprH'1' (~{this Reporl 

The pmpose of this rcpo,t is solely to doscrihc the scope or nur testing of inhmial control and 
complianr.c and the results nr thal testing.. and nol to providt: an opinion on the clTCctiveness or 
the vnli!y'~ intl'.rnal conlnil nr on cc1mp\iancc. This report is an integr:11 part of an audit 
pcr!f:,f!llL'd in accordancL'. with (~oven1mcnt Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal 
c.on1rnl and complianc._;. 1\cl~nrdingly, this commu11icatfr,n is nm ~~uitabie for any o1hcr purpose. 

Pre.,qut~ hie, \-'faine 
Septc.mhcr 28, 2021 
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PARAGRAPH lC: 

PROPERTY TRANACTIONS 

LEASES AND SALES 

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 

PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS DURING 

FISCAL YEAR2021 

GOLF COURSE SALE. 4 Birdies, LLC, purchased the nine-hole golf course and club house in July 
2020. The company is owned by golf enthusiasts who made improvements to the operation and 
had a successful first season in 2020. 

SYNERGEN SOLAR, LLC. SynerGen Solar, LLC exercised its lease option this year and began the 
construction phase of its project. The company now leases approximately 20-acres on the north 
side of Northcutt Road, where it will install an electrical power generating solar facility. 

JASON DIONNE TRUCKING. LDA entered into a one-year lease with Jason Dionne, owner of Jason 
Dionne Trucking, for the lease of Building 8264 at Loring, in support if his trucking business. 

LORING INDUSTRIES, LLC. LDA reacquired ownership of Loring Industries (LI) after the owner 
of the company passed away. LOA established LI with the intent ofcreating an opportunity to attract 
new business activity to Loring. LI was transferred to a new owner in 2017, who operated the business 
and created new manufacturing jobs; his untimely death left the company without an operator. LOA is 
now working to transfer the company to a new owner/operator. 

SUPPLEMENTAL DEED FROM AIR FORCE AND DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL COVENANTS. 

LDA Trustees authorized the LOA President and CEO to accept a Supplemental Deed, given by 
the Air Force to LOA, and to execute a Declaration of Environmental Covenants. The documents 
define a set of land use restrictions that address the problem of soil vapor intrusion into certain 
buildings; identifying affected properties and requiring soil vapor intrusion to be addressed prior to 
commercial occupancy or new construction. 

LICENSES 

BLUSHIFT AEROSPACE. bluShift successfully completed a rocket demonstration launch from Loring, 
with thousands of people watching online. bluShift is part of the Maine Spaceport initiative. 

QINETIQ. QinetiQ, a defense contractor, used the airfield at Loring to conduct testing of a new product 
for the US Army. Facility space was also leased in support of the testing operations. 

APACHE BOATWORKS, K & S TIMING, LLC, CUMBERLAND MOTOR CLUB, INC. The runway at 
Loring was used by the three Maine organizations in support of their respective events, including land 
sailing, land speed racing, and motor cross. 

- 4 -
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Loring Development Authority of Maine 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 

July I, 2020-June 30, 2021 

PARAGRAPH lD: ACTIVITIES OF ANY SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT FORMED UNDER 

SECTION 13080-G 

NONE 

PARAGRAPH lE: LISTING OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY EMINENT DOMAIN UNDER 

SECTION 13080-G 

NONE 

PARAGRAPH lF: LISTING OF BONDS ISSUED 

NONE 

- 5 -
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PARAGRAPH lG: 

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 

July I, 2020 - June 30, 2021 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS-JULY 1,2021 TO OCTOBER 15, 2021 AND 
PROPOSED ACTIVITIES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

A summary of the activities on the Loring Commerce Centre between July I, 2021 and October 
15, 2021 are provided below. 

CONGRESSIONALLY DIRECTED SPENDING REQUEST. LOA submitted a $3.l million request 
through HUD including $1.5 million for roads, $1.2 million for demolition and $400,000 for 
marketing. Senator Collins has supported a $2.7 million request for roads and demolition, which 
are approved uses for HUD funding. The $400,000 for marketing is not an approved use in that 
program. If approved, the funding would be federal FY22 funding. 

SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT. LOA is moving forward with a $3.6 million sewer replacement 
project with funding from the Community Development Block Grant program, Maine Department 
of Environmental Protection and the Northern Border Regional Commission. Approximately 
20,000 feet of sewer collection line and manholes will be replaced, reducing the inflow and 
infiltration (I/I) of surface and ground water into the sewer collection system. In prior phases of 
sewer replacement work, approximately 22,000 feet of sewer lines and manholes were replaced. 

4BIRDIES, LLC. 4Birdies, owner of the Limestone Country Club, was released from the LDA's 
option to repurchase the property and its right of first refusal. The release is intended to alleviate 
the concern of investors who are worried about the uncertainties created by the options. 

FIRST CUT HAY, Co, LLC. LOA entered into a lease with First Cut Hay Co for space in the former 
commissary building at Loring. The company is making use of the warehouse space with overhead 
doors as it moves forward with its hay storage and processing operations. 

POTATO STORAGE. LOA entered into license agreements with two local farmers who needed 
additional storage for their extraordinarily large crop of potatoes this year. 

GREEN 4 MAINE PROPOSAL. LOA Trustees authorized the execution of a Purchase & Sale 
Agreement with Green 4 Maine and its principals, who initially anticipate the startup of three 
new businesses and the purchase of several buildings. 

PROPOSED AND PROJECTED ACTIVITIES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 

In addition to working to ensuring that our existing tenants remain viable business entities, the 
LOA intends to carry out the following activities in fiscal year 2021: 

- 6 -
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SUSTAINABILITY TASK FORCE. Move forward with recommendations of the Consultants in their 
Sustainability Task Force Report to the Governor. 

MARKETING. Develop and begin to execute a new marketing plan for Loring, guided by the 2019 
Strategic Plan developed by RKG Associates. 

GREEN 4 MAINE (G4M). Work with the G4M principals, supporting the startup of three new 
businesses and the sale of several buildings. Moving forward with the G4M proposal is one of 
the recommendations of the task force report. G4M would become the master developer of the 
Loring properties with LOA providing public infrastructure support. 

ACTIVE PROSPECTS. Continue supporting proposed development projects in cooperation with 
G4M and Loring Industries, including manufacturing prospects, fuel pipeline and corridor energy 
projects, renewable energy generation projects, aviation maintenance, and various aviation and 
aerospace operations at the Loring International Airport. 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT. Pursue funding for roadway, stormwater infrastructure, and 
facilities improvements, and complete the $3.6 million wastewater collection system improvement 
project. 

OPPORTUNITY ZONES. Take advantage of the Opportunity Zone designation. Loring, along with 
the town of Limestone, has been designated an Opportunity Zone. The new federal Opportunity 
Zone program is intended to attract new investments, providing tax incentives for investments 
made in designated areas. LOA is to be included with DECO and Maine & Company's marketing 
efforts to attract opportunity zone investors. 

- 7 -
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PARAGRAPH lH: 

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 

July I, 2020 - June 30, 2021 

FURTHER ACTIONS SUITABLE FOR ACHIEVING PURPOSES 

OF THIS ARTICLE 

The Loring Development Authority recommends that the following actions be considered 
by the Governor and Legislature 

Approve, a 5-year extension of LD 1670 would help fill a funding gap for operations, while new 

businesses expand and generate revenue. In 2016, the 127th Legislature enacted LD 1670 which 

increased LDA's tax increment funding associated with Loring based jobs from 50% to 100% for 

one year. It was originally enacted with a 5-year duration with a review requirement, but was later 

amended so that the increase to 100% was for one year only. Last year, a Governor's bill that 

would have reinstated the 100% increase for 2 years was in the Revisor's office but was not 

considered because the legislature adjourned early due to the pandemic. 

The increased funding is needed to address a cash shortfall, while new development is pursued. 

Expenditures for the year are greater than revenues. The pandemic has had an impact in the sense 

of the timing of expected new business. LOA received $150,000 from the State DECO and secured 

a $150,000 loan from SBA and a $100,000 short-term loan from Northern Maine Development 

Commission (NMDC) to address the shortfall in FY2 l. A $200,000, five-year term loan for 

working capital from NMDC helped address the shortfall in FY20. LOA is working with its bank 

to secure a USDA guaranteed CARES Act loan for operational funding going forward. The 

pandemic and other factors created much operational uncertainty, leaving LOA in a precarious 

cash position. 

- 8 -



P 97

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report 

July I, 2020 - June 30, 2021 

ATTACHMENT 

LORING COMMERCE CENTRE TENANTS 

APTIM. APTIM, an environmental engineering firm working for the Air Force Civil Engineering 
Center, occupies offices in the LOA office building. 

Aroostook National Wildlife Refuge. The 4, 700-acre refuge belongs to the National Wildlife 
Refuge System, a network of lands set aside specifically for the protection of wildlife and its 
habitat. Wetland, grassland and northern forest habitats for migratory birds and endangered 
species are protected on the refuge at Loring. Friends of the Aroostook National Wildlife Refuge 
support its programs through education, fundraising, recreational and volunteer projects. 

Bangor Gas. Bangor Gas, a natural gas company and a subsidiary of Penobscot Natural Gas, 
leases the Loring to Searsport pipeline. The company has reactivated a portion of the pipeline to 
supply natural gas to customers along the corridor. 

Bigelow Aerospace, LLC. Bigelow Aerospace is developing, constructing, launching and testing 
human-habitable space complexes, revolutionizing the space tourism industry. Bigelow has a 
radar installation at Loring. 

British Cycle Snpply Company. British Cycle Supply Company's operations include shipping, 
receiving, and warehousing classic British motorcycle parts that are acquired and sold worldwide. 
The company has another location in Nova Scotia, Canada. 

CCI Utility and Construction Services, LLC. CCI is making use of space at Loring to store 
modular units and associated equipment and tools, in support of US Customs and Boarder 
Protection operations. 

Consolidated Commnnications. Consolidated Communications leases a former communications 
site on Route 89 in Limestone where it set up a satellite tracking and communications station. 

Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS) Center. The DFAS center operates out of a 
first-class, 145,000 square foot facility where its employees have consistently performed with 
excellence since 1995. The center is responsible for finance and accounting services for military 
installations across the U.S. and in foreign countries; DFAS Limestone employs 558 people. 

Equine Management, LLC. Equine Management, LLC from Kentucky purchased a 6,800 square 
foot building with the intent of refurbishing it and then leasing to a related company that would 
provide medical license training online and eventually on site. 

First Cut Hay Co., LLC. A newly formed company, First Cut Hay, stores and processes hay and 
animal feed products at Loring. 

Frontier Transport, LLC. Frontier Transport stores, processes, and transports agricultural and 
wood biomass products for local customers. The company with its partner Triple G Sales also 
offers a farm equipment storage in a leased facility at Loring. 

Graphic Utilities. Graphic Utilities (GU) leases space in the Loring Applied Technology Center 
building. The company develops, manufactures and sells innovative ink products. 

- 9 -
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Inland Winds Property Management. Inland Wind's residential properties at Loring include 
three and four bedroom town homes and individual homes available for purchase or lease. 

Jason Dionne Trucking. The company occupies building #8264 at Loring, in support if his 
trucking business. 

Lattice Technologies, Inc. Lattice Technologies, a consulting firm performing services in the 
defense sector, now occupies an office at Loring. 

Limestone Country Club. The Limestone Country Club, Loring's nine-hole golf course, is a 
favorite among many golfers in the area. Operators of the country club also host community and 
private events. 

Limestone Rotary Club. The Limestone Rotary Club holds its weekly meetings at Loring. It is 
a very active club with dedicated members working together to improve their community. 

Limestone Water & Sewer District. The Limestone Water & Sewer District owns and operates 
the wastewater treatment facility at Loring, providing service to all wastewater customers in 
Limestone, including Loring Commerce Centre. Four people work for the district at Loring. 

Loring Holdings. Loring Holdings (LH), a multi-faceted energy company, is working to advance 
energy production and transmission in Maine using the Loring to Searsport pipeline corridor. LH, 
along with its partners, have proposed to build the "Maine Power Express" transmission project 
connecting renewable sources of power in Maine and Canada to southern New England via an 
underground and underwater transmission line. LH is also working on a biofuel project to be 
located at Loring. 

Loring Industries, LLC. Loring Industries (LI) completed vehicle refurbishment projects and is 
pursing business opportunities and capital investments with various partners. 

Loring Job Corps Center (LJCC). The Loring Job Corps Center, part of the Job Corps New 
England Region and the National Job Corps system, provides academic programs and career 
vocational training in multiple industries for youth ages 16-24. The Center welcomed its first 380 
students in January 1997. Career Systems Development Corp. operates LJCC and employs 167 
people. 

Loring Military Heritage Center. The Loring Military Heritage Center (LMHC), a museum of 
Loring Air Force Base history, was created by a group of enthusiastic and dedicated volunteers. 
An impressive collection of Loring memorabilia and artifacts is housed in the LMHC. 

McDonald Enterprises. McDonald Enterprises is a small custom manufacturer of wood and 
metal products. 

Maine Army National Guard. The Maine Army National Guard leases a 27-acre parcel of land 
at Loring where it has constructed a facility to warehouse its equipment. 

New England Kenworth. New England Kenworth, with Loring Industries, operates a TRP store 
at Loring, warehousing and selling vehicle parts. Expansion plans include truck sales and services. 

Pineland Farms Natural Meats. Pineland Farms Natural Meats, Inc. operates a beef cattle 
feedlot in Fort Fairfield and a composting operation at Loring. Pineland's goal is to generate 
10,000 cubic yards or more of compost material a year. Pineland sells compost in bulk form to 
local farmers and in consumer-sized packaging at various retail outlets. Pineland employs two 
people at Loring. 
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Pioneer Wireless. Pioneer Wireless, a broadband telecommunications company, now leases office 
space in LDA's office building. The new location will help Pioneer capitalize on the Three Ring 
binder telecommunications infrastructure, enabling it to offer dark fiber, fiber optic and other 
advanced services to Loring customers. 

SFE Mannfacturing. SFE Manufacturing, operates an equipment fabrication business at Loring, 
serving commercial, industrial, and government customers. SFE employs approximately 18 
people. 

Straight-Line Fencing. Straight-Line Fencing, an existing company with fencing sales and 
installation services, is in the process of establishing manufacturing capacity for a new line of its 
own products. 

S.W. Collins Company. S.W. Collins Company, a hardware and building materials supplier, 
located its commercial line operation in the Loring Applied Technology Center. The line features 
custom-built products for commercial customers, offering a wide range of highly refined wood 
products including custom-built cabinetry and cases. S.W. Collins employs five at Loring. 

SynerGen Solar, LLC. SynerGen Solar, LLC exercised its lease option this year and began the 
construction phase of its project. The company now leases approximately 20-acres on the north 
side of Northcutt Road, where it will install an electrical power generating solar facility. 

The Bunker Inn. The Bunker Inn, located in the former visiting officer's quarters, is open to the 
public with twenty suites available. People traveling for business or pleasure make use of this 
unique facility, with many repeat guests. 

The Power Company. Based in Washington, Maine, the Power Company constructed two solar­
voltaic systems at Loring; both have been in operation for several years. LOA purchases the 
electrical power generated by the solar systems at an overall cost advantage compared with the 
cost of electricity available through the traditional utility and energy providers. 

Loring Development Authority of Maine 
154 Development Drive, Suite F 

Limestone, Maine 04750 
207-328-7005 

LDA@Loring.org 
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Legislative Council Meeting 
November 18, 2021 

Deciding Appeals of Legislative Bill Requests Turned Down By the Council 

Requirements Relevant to Bills in the Second Regular Session 

1. Under the terms of the Maine Constitution, Section 1 of Article IV, Part Third, Legislative Power, the
business of the second regular session must be limited to budgetary matters; legislation in the
Governor’s call; legislation of an emergency nature admitted by the Legislature; legislation referred
to committees to study and report by the Legislature in the first regular session; and legislation
presented to the Legislature by written petition of the electors (direct citizen initiative).

2. Under the 130th Legislative Council’s Rules of Procedure, any action of the Council requires the
affirmative vote of at least 6 members.

3. Under Rule 203 of the Joint Rules of the 130th Legislature, any vote of the Legislative Council to
accept or reject a bill or resolve for introduction under the procedures established under the Joint
Rules must be taken by the yeas and nays, and that vote must be recorded and made available for
public inspection.

4. Under Rule 217 of the Joint Rules, a bill that has been introduced and finally rejected in a regular or
special session may not be introduced in a subsequent session of the same Legislature except by a
vote of 2/3 of both chambers.  Therefore, determinations as to the relevancy of Rule 217 will be made
by the presiding officers outside of this meeting.

Suggested Protocol for Deciding Appeals 

A. The Legislative Council will review appeals in alphabetical order by Sponsor.

B. For procedural consistency, when voting on an appeal of a bill request that was denied, the initial
motion on a bill will be presumed to be a motion to accept the bill request for introduction in the
second regular session along with a second to that motion.  (A vote of “yes” is to let in the bill; a vote
of “no" is to reject the bill for introduction).  Also for procedural consistency, unless otherwise stated,
each motion is presumed to have been made by the vice-chair of the Legislative Council, seconded by
the chair.

C. In order to review all legislative appeals in a timely manner, voting will be by electronic vote or a
show of hands, with each Council Member’s vote on each bill being recorded.  The record of each
vote will be made available by the Office of the Executive Director for public inspection as soon as
practicable following the meeting.

D. A Legislator who has filed a timely appeal of the decision of the Legislative Council to reject a bill
request sponsored by that Legislator will be given a brief opportunity to orally present their appeal to
the Council.  A time limit of 2 minutes will be observed for Legislators making an appeal.  Only by
leave of the Chair of the Legislative Council may a person who is not a Legislator Sponsor address
the Council.

E. Discussion of a bill request will be limited to whether it is appropriate for introduction under
Constitutional provisions for second regular session bills, and will not speak to the merits of the bill
itself.  If a bill was turned down because it is closely related to another legislative request or to a
carryover bill, the burden is on the Sponsor to convincingly distinguish the Sponsor’s bill request
from the closely related one.
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